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General Information
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General Information (continued)
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Financial Highlights
MBEE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=1+—HLEE

2009 2008
—EFThEF —EENF
Audited Audited
BEX 2 Change
HK$’000 HK$’000 b=
FET BT %
Revenue W= 5,804,184 5,669,274 +2.4
Gross profit EF 828,094 695,974 +19.0
Profit for the year REFFEHF 307,333 261,135 +17.7
EPS BRAF
— Basic — ERK HK$0.6558 7T HK$0.557 7T +18.2
— Diluted — B8 HK$0.65i& T HKS$0.557 7T +18.2
DPS RS
— Interim — FE] HK$0.173& 5T HK$0.257% 7T
— Final — REJ HK$0.103& 7T HK$0.0178 7T
Total: et - HK$0.273& 7T HK$0.267% 7T
Basic earnings and dividends per share (HK cents)
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Financial Highlights (continued)

MBREGR)

Analysis of EBITDA, gross, operating and net profit margins (%)
RETFIR. MIEA. FEREBHAIFIER, ERR KERFRDULMR RS (%)
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Financial Highlights (continued)
MBBE (&)

Turnover by geographical segments Turnover by operating segments
BB EEI D 2 E X REEDEEID 2 EXETE
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The Chairman’s Statement
FEHRES

| report to our shareholders that the Group had achieved a healthy
growth both in revenue and gross profit margin in 2009 despite
the global economy was yet to recover from the financial turmoil
affecting mainly our targeted markets in automotive and other
display applications of high markups. Like | said in the interim
report, businesses in the colour super twisted-nematic (CSTN)
LCDs have been very strong throughout the whole year and
are expected in 2010 as well. Our continuous dedication to this
important product line since 1995 when the first CSTN production
line was implemented, is proven to be absolutely right. The
subsequent additions of investments to this technology are very
vital in accomplishing an organic growth for the group and make us
now the no. 1 supplier of CSTN in the world.

During the year, | was happy to see the steady pay back from our
relatively heavy investments in the thin film transistor (TFT) LCDs
which still accounted for more than 50% of the Group’s revenue.
This significant profit contribution was not only from the panel
itself in the past but also being diversified from other integrated
components manufactured with TRULY brand such as capacitive
touch window, high resolution compact camera module, LED
backlight unit and HDI and flexible PCB. Altogether, we became
well-known as a unique one-stop-shopping centre for almost all
display solutions.

In a battle field, it was always said that one’s enemy is itself. This
also applies universally and in particular in the business world. |
would not argue the fact that there were still some rooms for us
to improve before winning the upcoming commercial competition.
After recent years of major investments in fixed assets, I’'m now
setting a more aggressive game plan for the production and
marketing teams. As planned, the factory is to reduce the material
consumption by more effective controls on raw material usage and
indirect production costs and overheads. The ultimate target is to
keep material content as low as 65% of revenue while maintaining
the same level of labour cost and other production overheads.
Unlike the previous two years, sales target for the next three years
will be back to normal and is expected to achieve an annual double
digit growth from 2010.
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The Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEREE(E)

Last but not least, improving the financial position of the Group
has been in the board’s agenda for some time. Besides putting up
so many business plans which are yet to be completed, | will take
it as our first priority to turn around this unfavourable situation and
go back to where we were and what we were proud of financially.
The placement of new shares completed in March 2010 not only
became a good move for this purpose but also a means to attract
more global and long-term valued partners as investors. | would
not rule out the possibility of similar events in the future provided it
is always to the benefit of the shareholders.

I would also like to thank our shareholders, business partners, staff

and workers for their dedication and continuous support to the
growth of the Group even in bad times.

Lam Wai Wah, Steven
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 April 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DT

Business Review

Revenue for the year recorded a growth of approximately 2.4%
amounting to around HK$5.80 billion (2008: HK$5.67 billion). The
market condition has been improving since the beginning of 2009 and
is expected to improve further subsequent to the year end. Audited
profit for the year was about 307 million which was approximately
17.7% more than the last corresponding year in 2008 (HK$261
million). By the appropriate change in depreciation rate applied to the
new TFT panel facilities during the year to reflect their realistic useful
life, the gross profit margin for the year was increased to around
14.3% (2008: 12.3%) and net profit margin of approximately 5.3%
(2008: 4.6%). The management believes that the change is not only
crucial to the reporting requirement of the Group but also vital in the
pricing strategy to attract more potential businesses.

The Group’s LCD business was about 96% of the total turnover for
the year. Due to the continuous cost down demand for electronic
products, our strategic focus to CSTN LCD applications is going to
pay back. During the year, sales of CSTN LCD business outperformed
over the other major categories. TFT is now accounting for around
50% of the Group’s LCD business while CSTN representing 21% has
become an integral element to the success of the Group.

Other businesses including the sales of compact camera modules
and printed circuit boards accounted for approximately 4% of
the Group’s turnover in 2009. With adequate and target driven
investments in these two key areas, we are confident of obtaining a
good return in the foreseeable future.

Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into
two operating divisions — LCD products and electronic consumer
products. These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports
its segment information.

Information reported to the Group’s chief operating decision maker for
the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of performance
is focused on the sales of different type of products. Thus the group
is currently organised into two reportable segments which are sales
of LCD products and electronic consumer products. The existing
identification of the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8
is consistent with that of the prior year’s presentation of business
segments under HKAS 14. The information of each reportable
segment is as follows:

LCD products — manufacture and distribution of LCD

products

Electronic consumer — manufacture and distribution of

products electronic consumer products such
as personal health care products
and electrical device.
FEHEBRERAE —ZTAFFR
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BEEN® KD (&)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

reportable segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2009

REVENUE &
External sales S1EH
Inter-segment sales DERHEE

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

RESULT #i5
Segment result DEEE
Unallocated expenses Koz &R
Profit before tax BB AR A

010

DERERER

AT RAEEZA2

BoBEI DS REED

BE_ZEAF+ A=+ -HLEFE

Electronic

LCD consumer

products products
RREREER SETHEER
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TET
5,587,175 217,009

- 157,702

5,587,175 374,711

Eliminations Consolidated

H ma
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TERT

- 5,804,184
(157,702) -

(157,702) 5,804,184

NEREE R HIHERSHE -

402,366 24,145

426,511
(18,065)

408,446
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEEFWR D (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2008

REVENUE
External sales
Inter-segment sales

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

RESULT
Segment result

Unallocated expenses

Profit before tax

Geographical information

The table set out information about the geographical location of the

ezt
lS::!

DRRHE

ES

NEXE
AN ER
BRBEATE R

Group’s revenue from external customers:

PRC

South Korea
Japan
Hong Kong
Europe
Others

ERERERAT

—EBNEEH

a3
FA%R
SN
B
B
Hitb

HE-FEN\F+H-AST—ALEE

LCD

products

R SRR T ES EE
HK$'000
FAET

5,555,605

5,555,605

349,535

Electronic
consumer
products
BFHEEM
HK$'000
FAT

113,669
171,317

284,986

Eliminations
Eag
HK$'000
FET

(171,317)

(171,317)

NERBETRENTIHEBRSHE -

6,061

HEER

2009
—EENF
HK$’000
FBT

4,180,328
993,976
125,847
170,439
126,017
207,577

5,804,184

Consolidated
ey

HK$'000
ARG

5,669,274

5,669,274

355,596
(16,5389)

339,058

TREFIREBIMNEE P WS R D HER

2008
ZET)\F
HK$’000
THET

4,507,916
414,004
109,410
268,661
179,920
189,363

5,669,274
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BEEENWR D (&)

Outlook

During the year, the marketing office in Hong Kong for the
international export market was successfully strengthened by hiring
more multinational sales professionals of hands-on experiences
and direct connection with customers in mother language and
native culture. We are now in a very good position to explore new
business opportunity in automotive and industrial displays by the well
established US, European and Indian teams. The two targeted display
applications will be our growth drivers for the coming decade.

The Group’s main revenue is still from the Chinese telecom industry
while more solid news are being released for the official mass
launching of 3G phone network. Our major product lines are still
benefited by the general national policies of promoting internal
consumption as a measure to increase GDP of China. The focus of
our display applications will be tightly in line with the change in the
marketplace and the customers’ desire. We are therefore confident
of making the Group’s business progress in the same pace as the
global economic recovery.

Financial Analysis
Investment, Assets and Liabilities

During the year, the Group acquired plant and machinery amounting
to HK$225 million and properties under development amounting
to HK$74 million for the purpose of expanding its manufacturing
capacity in the China factory campus.

Total assets were increased by approximately 2% to HK$6,660 million
which comprised HK$2,294 million of current assets, HK$4,169
million of property, plant and equipment and HK$197 million of other
long-term assets. Total liabilities were about HK$3,176 million, of
which HK$3,066 million were current liabilities and HK$110 million
were long term liabilities.

As at 31 December 2009 and for the year then ended, the Group had
breached certain of the banks’ financial covenants. Among others,
based on the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group,
the current ratio as at 31 December 2009 was below the major
banks’ pre-set limit resulting in a non-compliance. Waiver letters from
these banks were however obtained subsequent to the end of the
reporting period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BEEENWR D (&)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Revenue for the year were up by 2.4%. Profit for the year and
earnings per share were increased by 17.7% and 18.2% respectively.

As at 31 December 2009, the outstanding bank borrowings, net
of cash and bank balances, were about HK$1,535 million (2008:
HK$1,425 million). These borrowings bear interest at prevailing
market rate and their maturity profiles are shown in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

The financial position of the Group is still healthy and ready for future
capital expansion while keeping a sufficiently high level of cash and
bank balances (HK$503 million at 31 December 2009) together
with adequate unutilised banking facilities. The gearing ratio based
on total interest bearing debts, net of cash and bank balances was
approximately 44%.

Capital expenditure of around HK$360 million for the next three
years in respect of acquisitions of property, plant and equipment was
authorized but not contracted for. Their expected sources of funding
will be principally from internal reserves.

General

During the year, the Company issued a total of 60,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each under the share option scheme at HK$2.196
per share for an aggregate consideration of HK$132,000. The new
shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all respects and the
issued share capital of the Company was accordingly increased to
HK$47,294,000 at 31 December 2009.

The state of the Group’s current order books is very good.

Except for investments in subsidiaries and the long term investment
in a Japanese corporation (which was under liquidation during the
year), neither the Group nor the Company had held any other material
investments during the year.

Additions to fixed assets mainly in properties under development
and plant and machinery were approximately HK$335 million. There
were no material disposals of fixed assets during the year. As at 31
December 2009, the Group had no pledge or mortgage on its fixed
assets.

More than 10,000 workers and staff are currently employed in our
Shan Wei factory in China and around 80 personnel in the Group’s
Hong Kong office. Total staff costs for the year were approximately
HK$431 million.

The Group had no material contingent liabilities at the balance sheet
date and exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates will be hedged, if
any.

EAERERATE —ZENFFR
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BEEENWR D (&)

Other Information
Dividends

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2009 of 10 HK cents per share (2008: 1
HK cent) to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members on 31 May 2010 which, together with the interim dividends
of 17 HK cents per share (2008: 25 HK cents) paid in 2009, makes
a total dividend for the year of 27 HK cents per share (2008: 26 HK
cents). It is expected that the final dividend payments will be made to
shareholders on 7 July 2010.

The total dividend payout ratio for the year was about 42%.
Customers and suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the five largest customers and
purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30%
of the total sales and purchases of the Group respectively.

As at 31 December 2009, none of the directors, their associates,
or any shareholders which to the knowledge of the directors owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
beneficial interests in the Group’s five largest customers and/or five
largest suppliers mentioned in the preceding paragraph.

Directors and Senior Management

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out as follows:

Mr. Lam Wai Wah, Steven, aged 57, is the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company. He is the founder of the Group and has
over 33 years of experience in the electronics industry. He is primarily
responsible for the formulation of the Group’s overall strategic
planning and business development.

Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James, aged 51, is an Executive Director of
the Company and the Chief Operating Officers of the Group. He is
responsible for the Group’s operations in respect of internal controls
and risk management, investors’ relationship and external affairs. He
joined the Group in 1987.

Mr. Cheung Tat Sang, James, aged 54, is an Executive Director of
the Company. He is responsible for the sales of the Group’s LCD
products and other electronic components. Prior to joining the Group
in 1989, he had been the sales manager for a number of electronics
companies for over 10 years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BEEENWR D (&)

Mr. Li Jian Hua, aged 46, is the Head of the Group’s LCD Production
Division and an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Li graduated
from the Jilin University of Technology and Engineering Management
in 1987 and joined the group in 1989. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked in a multinational motor car manufacturer in Guangzhou City,
the PRC for almost two years.

Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, aged 52, is an independent Non-executive
Director of the Company and the Chairman of the Group’s Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees. He is a practising
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong and is members of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Australian
Society of Certified Practising Accountants and a council member of
the Macau Society of Certified Practising Accountants. Mr. Chung
has extensive experience in accounting and financial management
and has been the independent Non-executive Director, management
consultant and Company Secretary of a number of listed companies
in Hong Kong.

Mr. Ip Cho Ting, Spencer, aged 51, is an independent Non-executive
Director and members of the Group’s Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees. He is the holder of a Bachelor of Science
degree from the University of Wisconsin, Green Bay, U.S.A. Mr. Ip is a
member of the Institute of Financial Planner of Hong Kong and is the
Senior Financial Advisor of a professional insurance company in Hong
Kong.

Mr. Heung Kai Sing, aged 61, is an independent Non-executive
Director and members of the Group’s Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees. He has experience in textile industry.

Mr. Ng Sui Wa, Thomas, aged 47, is the Group’s Chief Financial
Officer and the Finance Director of Truly Semiconductors Limited. He
graduated from the University of Hong Kong and is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Ng
joined the Group in 1996 and has over 22 years of experiences for
working in an international accounting firm and in the commercial and
industrial sectors.

By order of the Board
Lam Wai Wah, Steven
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 April 2010
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Directors’ Report

EEEHREE

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2009.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
liquid crystal display products and electronic consumer products
including calculators, electric toothbrush and electronic components.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 35.

Interim dividends in aggregate of 17 HK cents per share, amounting
to HK$80,399,000, was paid to the shareholders during the year.

The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of 10
HK cent per share to the shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members on 31 May 2010, amounting to
HK$50,315,000

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group acquired plant and machinery and
properties under development amounting to HK$255,174,000
and HK$73,765,000 respectively for the purpose of expanding its
manufacturing capacity in Shan Wei City, Guangdong Province in the
People’s Republic of China.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and

equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the issued share capital of
the Company are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEWREE(#)

Distributable Reserves of the Company

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as
at 31 December 2009 were as follows:

Share premium RH R E
Special reserve R
Retained earnings IREB &

Under the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
of the Company is available for distributions or paying dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum or Articles
of Association and provided that immediate following the distribution
or paying dividend the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

The special reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the net book values of the underlying assets of the
Company’s subsidiaries acquired at the date on which the shares of
these companies were acquired by the Company, and the nominal
amount of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisitions.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEWREE(#)

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:
Lam Wai Wah, Steven
Wong Pong Chun, James
Cheung Tat Sang, James
Li Jian Hua

Independent non-executive directors:
Chung Kam Kwong

Heung Kai Sing

Ip Cho Ting, Spencer

In accordance with Articles 100 and 120 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Heung Kai Sing, Lam Wai Wah, Steven and Ip Cho Ting,
Spencer retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The independent non-executive directors are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the above articles.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEWREE(#)

Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares

At 31 December 2009, the interests of the directors and their
associates in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and
its associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as
follows:

Long positions

(@)  Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

Name of director

EEHR

Lam Wai Wah, Steven
WEE

Wong Pong Chun, James
w=HE

Cheung Tat Sang, James
SREAE

Li Jian Hua
e

EAERERATE —ZENFFR

Capacity

512

Beneficial owner
EmlEEA

Held by spouse (note 1)
miEEEE (HEE1)

Beneficial owner
E=mMAA

Held by spouse (note 2)
MACE A (H3E2)

Beneficial owner

BERBEBEA

Beneficial owner

BERBEBEA

ESZRORBERGER

RIBARRIBRES KGRI FE 362G RTFZE
FCMAE - R LT ARERETEFR NG

BFANDANEARNRR REE

4 A 25
EiN= N

ZERRRZ

BH G R-ZZNFT A=+—B EERHAME
ABEE 2 AR R R ERBOER 2 Bty MR (s

LUNNE

"R

@) ARFEREEO. 1ETZ BER

Number of issued
ordinary shares
held

FrF 2B 81T
ZBEREE

207,072,000

13,608,000

220,680,000
7,970,000

300,000

8,270,000

710,000

1,672,000

Percentage of
the issued share
capital of

the Company
HERATZE
BITRABDL
%

43.78

2.88

46.66
1.69

0.06

1.75

0.15

0.35
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Directors’ Report (continued)

ETEREE(E)

(b)  Share options

b) BERE

Number of Number of
Name of director Capacity options held underlying shares
EEHE 514 FrFZBRESE ARG A
Lam Wai Wah, Steven Beneficial owner N -
MEE EREAA
Wong Pong Chun, James Beneficial owner 8,900,000 8,900,000
mHAE EREAA
Cheung Tat Sang, James Beneficial owner 9,240,000 9,240,000
SREAE EnEaA
Li Jian Hua Beneficial owner 4,150,000 4,150,000
et EREAA
Held by spouse (note 3) 4,400,000 4,400,000
R EFEEA (HFE3)
26,690,000 26,690,000
Notes: PisE

Lam Wai Wah, Steven is deemed to be interested in 13,608,000
ordinary shares of the Company, being the interests held
beneficially by his spouse, Chung King Yee, Cecilia.

Wong Pong Chun, James is deemed to be interested in 300,000
ordinary shares of the Company, being the interests held
beneficially by his spouse, Lai Ching Mui, Stella.

Li Jian Hua is deemed to be interested in 4,400,000 share
options of the Company, being the interests held beneficially by
his spouse, Guo Yu Yan.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 December 2009.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEWREE(#)

Share Options B

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in BN A S EREAE 2 BN B HRERW T E34
note 34 to the financial statements. g °

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share  TREBAQF ZBERENRERNZE
options during the year:

Number of Number of
options options
outstanding at Exercised outstanding at
Option type beginning of year during year end of year
RE e RATHE REZERITHE
BB AEE R BREHE FRITE BIREHE
Category 1: Directors
-8 EE
Lam Wai Wah, Steven 2001 - - -
MEZE
Wong Pong Chun, James 2001 - - -
S 2003 4,400,000 - 4,400,000
2006 4,500,000 - 4,500,000
Cheung Tat Sang, James 2001 400,000 (60,000) 340,000
RIEA 2003 4,400,000 - 4,400,000
2006 4,500,000 - 4,500,000
Li Jian Hua (Note) 20083 8,550,000 - 8,550,000
T (PE)
26,750,000 (60,000) 26,690,000

Note: Li Jian Hua is deemed to be interested in 4,400,000 2003 shares iz : 232418 A5 4,400,0001) £ AL BB EHE
options, being the interests held beneficially by his spouse, Guo Yu Yan. a2 — T = FREREERS -

Category 2: Substantial shareholder FoEEIERR

Other than the share options previously held by Lam Wai Wah, BMEEBEISEZBEREIN - AT EEmEMmE
Steven, no share option has been granted to other substantial  ZERYERIZ FEERME -

shareholders.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEREE(E)
Option type
RS
Category 3: Employees 2001
=8 E8 2003
2006

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares

Number of
options
outstanding at
beginning of year
REDERITHE
BREZAR

5,000
25,625,000
4,500,000

30,130,000

immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised  B/&8.2/87T °

was HK$8.2.

Arrangement to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Other than the share option schemes disclosed above, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire

benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,  5#lz °

the Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEWREE(#)

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2009, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance shows that other than the interests disclosed
above in respect of Lam Wai Wah, Steven, the following shareholders
had notified the Company of relevant interests in the issued share
capital of the Company.

Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity

PR SR & )

Chan Kin Sun (note) Beneficial owner

B s (B ) EnEEA
Held by spouse
REBIFAE
Chan Lai Lan Beneficial owner
PR B EnEEA

Note: Chan Kin Sun and his spouse, Cheng Kwan Ying, Jennifer, are deemed
to be interested in 38,756,000 shares of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2009.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of the schemes are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEmEE(#E)

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Purchases, Sales or Redemption of Listed
Securities

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

Model Code

None of the Directors of the Company is aware of information that
would reasonably indicate that the Company was not in the year
under review in compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Audit Committee

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in
accordance with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting matters and internal
controls. The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2009 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee which
comprises all the three independent non-executive directors namely
Mr. Chung Kam Kwong (being the Chairman), Mr. Ip Cho Ting,
Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai Sing, and Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James,
an executive director, as members. They meet at least four times a
year.

The Group has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

Remuneration and Nomination Committees

The Company has a Remuneration Committee and a Nomination
Committee respectively which were established in accordance with
the relevant requirements of the Code. The two Committees are
chaired by Mr. Chung Kam Kwong, an independent non-executive
director and comprise three other members, namely Mr. Ip Cho Ting,
Spencer and Mr. Heung Kai Sing, being independent non-executive
directors and Mr. Wong Pong Chun, James, an executive director of
the Company.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHREE(HE)

Corporate Governance

The Board considers that good corporate governance of the
Company is essential to safeguarding the interests of the shareholders
and enhancing the performance of the Group. The Board is
committed to maintain and ensure high standards of corporate
governance. The Company has complied with all the applicable code
provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
December 2009, except for a major deviation as below:

° Code Provision A.2.1 — The roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive are not separated and are performed by the same
individual, Mr. Lam Wai Wah, Steven. The Board will meet
regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations
of the Company. The Board considers that this structure will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the management of Company and believes that
this structure will enable us to make and implement decisions
promptly and efficiently.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure that
business activities and decision-making processes are regulated

in a proper and prudent manner. More details are contained in the
separate Corporate Governance Report on pages 26 to 32.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2009.

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$4,173,000.

Auditors
A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as

auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lam Wai Wah, Steven
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 15 April 2010
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Corporate Governance Report
ST LN \Aﬁd:

Board of Directors and Board Committees
The Board

The Board was responsible for the Company’s corporate governance,
and was ultimately accountable for the Company’s activities,
strategies and financial performance.

The Board was mainly responsible for formulating and approving the
business strategies, objectives, policies and plans of the Company,
and monitoring the execution of the Company’s strategies. It was also
responsible for overseeing the operating and financial performance
of the Company and establishing appropriate risk control policies
and procedures in order to ensure that the strategic objectives
of the Company are materialized. In addition, the Board was also
responsible for improving the corporate governance structure and
enhancing communications with shareholders.

The Board has delegated the responsibilities for the execution of
strategies and decision-making for day-to-day operation of the
Company to the management team headed by the Managing
Director, Mr. Lam Wai Wah, Steven.

The management reported regularly to the Board on the operating
and financial performance of the Company. Development, expansion
and other major capital expenditure and commitment, as well as
major financing decisions were all reviewed and approved by the
Board.

Connections between members of the Board

None of the members of the Board have any connections (including
financial, business, family relationship and other material/related
relationships) with each other during the period under review.
Director’s dealing in securities

Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, the Company
confirmed that all Directors had complied with their obligations
regarding dealings in securities under the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules during the period under review.
Non-executive directors

The non-executive Directors were not appointed for a specific term

but were subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERME (F)

Independent non-executive Directors

The Company has received confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors as regards his independence
to the Company and considered that each of the independent non-
executive Directors was independent to the Company during the
period under review.

Board committees

The Board was supported by three Board Committees. Each Board
Committee has its own responsibilities, power and functions. The
chairman of the respective Board Committees reported to the Board
from time to time and made recommendations on matters discussed
when appropriate.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee were as
follows:

(1) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for remuneration of directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing the policy on such
remuneration;

(2) to determine the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors and senior management, including benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment, and make recommendations to the Board of
the remuneration of non-executive Directors;

(8) to review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goalsand objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time;

(4) to review and approve the compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management in connection with any loss
or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that
such compensation is determined in accordance with relevant
contractual terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive for the Company; and

(5) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that such arrangements are determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that any compensation payment
is otherwise reasonable and appropriate.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERME (F)

The main role of the Nomination Committee was to assure the
process of appointments and reelection of the Board members were
transparent and to assess effectiveness of the Board as a whole
and the contribution of individual directors to the effectiveness of the
Board. The responsibilities of the Nomination Committee were as
follows:

(1)  toregularly review the structure, size and composition (including
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations to the Board in relation to any proposed
changes;

(2) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(8) to evaluate the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

(4) to evaluate the performance of directors and make
recommendations to the Board in respect of the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors in particular the Chairman and CEO.

The roles and functions of the Audit Committee were as follows:

(1) primarily responsible for making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

(2) to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

(8) to develop and implement policies on the engagement of
an external auditor to supply non-audit services. The Audit
Committee should report to the Board, identifying any matters
in respect of which it considers that action or improvement is
needed and making recommendations as to the steps may be
taken;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TEERME (F)
(4)  to monitor integrity of financial statements, accounts, annual

EANEBRERAE

reports and interim reports of the Company and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them,
including:

(@ any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(b)  major judgment areas;

(c) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(d) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(e) compliance with accounting standards; and

()  compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

to discuss with the management the system of internal control
and ensure that the management has discharged its duty to
have an effective internal control system;

to consider any findings of major investigations of internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response;

to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors, and to ensure that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company; and

to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit
function.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERME (F)

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees

The Directors’ attendances at the meetings of the Board and the
Board Committees for the year ended 31 December 2009 were as
follows:

Board
EEg
Director
==
Executive directors:
BITES:
Lam Wai Wah, Steven 2
EEE
Wong Pong Chun, James 5
=RE
Cheung Tat Sang, James 5
SREA
Li Jian Hua 1
TR
Independent non-executive directors:
BUFHTES:
Chung Kam Kwong 3
R
Heung Kai Sing 2
Ip Cho Ting, Spencer 3
i
Total number of meetings held 5
BITEREH

Auditor’s Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the fees paid to the
Company’s external auditors amounted to HK$2,807,000, of which
fees paid for non-audit services amounted to HK$179,000.

ExEREEEREEER

Number of meetings attended

030 Truly International Holdings Limited

RBE_ZTNFT_A=+—HILFE  EEKNE
EZENEFERBETHIHLEBRNOT :

Nomination

=&

n/a
i A

n/a
TERA
n/a
TERA

HESERE
Board Committees
EESEET
Audit Remuneration
B i
n/a n/a
i A NE A
4 0
n/a n/a
NiE A NE A
n/a n/a
i A NE A
4 0
3 0
4 0
4 0
BB AT 2 Er

HE_ZTAF+-_A=+—HILtFE  ZHFALQ
A INEEAZ BRRT 2 & R 52,807,000/ 7T © E AR IERE
AR7EE M A179,0008 7T °
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERME (F)

Internal Control

The Board was fully responsible for the maintenance of a sound
and effective internal control system within the Group. Throughout
the year from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2009, the Board
conducted reviews of the effectiveness of the internal control system
in all material respects including but not limited to operational,
financial, risk management and compliance controls. The Group’s
system of internal control comprised a well-defined organizational
and management structure with levels and limits of authority which
was established to help achieve business objectives, safeguard assets
against unauthorized access or disposal, ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records to produce reliable management and
financial information for internal use and for publication purpose, help
management mitigate potential risk factors and ensure compliance
with relevant rules and regulations. The system was designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in operational systems so as to achieve the Group’s objectives
and long-term goals.

The Group’s internal control system comprised the following five
components:

(1)  Organizational and Management Structure — the Group has
established an organizational and management structure with
operating policies and procedures, lines of responsibilities and
delegated authority has already been established.

(2)  Authority and Control — the relevant executive Directors and
senior management have been delegated with respective levels
of authorities with regard to key corporate strategy and policy,
contractual commitments and the dealing of price sensitive
information.

(8)  Budgetary Control and Management and Financial Reporting —
budgets have been prepared by senior management including
various department heads and were subject to review and
approval by the executive Directors on a regular basis prior
to being adopted. Operating results against budgets have
been analyzed and reported to the executive Directors as a
reference to monitor the Group’s strategy and policy. Regular
reviews by the Audit Committee and audits by external auditors
respectively have been carried out to ensure the preparation
of the management information and consolidated financial
statements are in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles, the Group’s accounting policies and
applicable laws and regulations.

EAERERATE —ZENFFR

M EPE 2

B2 RARARARENERRRZBXRE
BY - R_TZNF-A-—RE_ZTTNEF+_A
=t RLESFEHRE  EFSRAMERERR KR
HiTles - ARERFREMAEEEERE - BEE
TRNEEET - MHEE  RREERSMRET -
AEBENMERE AR EE—ERREERERERZ
AELEERE  EEMHERASEZEBKEE
REEERRAEERCAILE  BRETEES
FrRcsR MR A S22 B R B ERHEAARME AT
B2m - BEPERERCEERREZ  ARRERE
SHEERNRE - ZFMEESE(BEAIFRE )R
BWEBARRERAKIBRER - YER(BHEZE
HB)LERGZARABRUNERAEE B RE
HIER -

REEAFEIERRETEATREE D -

(1) HABREERE—ASECEY -—EABLE
B FTRMERCEERREEF  BEAER
FERR -

@ HEREREZR—AENTEEASREEEDE
BT HREERAEEDOERE - BOR - KK
AR ERRENBEREE

@ BEEHREELPERBRES —SREEE
(BREEMABEA)BIE 2 BERERMATA
HATEFTEHERRE - KEXBETERE
HETHBAN  LRRTEERS - FRE
RALERBEREK2LZE - BEREEGEE
HE Biie A ROME BB E TR BUAERE
BEEHMMGEEVBRRZBENA AR
R RNEEZ GETBRRARBERERIESR

031



Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERME (F)

(4)  Systems and Procedures — systems and procedures have been
established to identify, measure, manage and control various
risks including business, compliance, operational, financial and
information that may have an impact on the Group and each
major department. Exposure to these risks was monitored by
the executive Directors and the management with reference to
the regular reports produced by the Audit Committee and the
external auditors.

(5) Internal Audit — the Audit Committee has performed
independent reviews of the controls and risks identified to
ensure that adequate controls have been put in place and risk
elements have been properly addressed.

According to the review results of the Audit Committee for the year
from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2009, the Group’s internal
control system is functioning effectively and there was no significant
weakness found in the course of the review processes. The Board
has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems
and is of the opinion that there are no suspected frauds, irregularities,
internal control deficiencies or suspected infringement of laws, rules
and regulations that cause the Board to believe that the systems of
internal control are ineffective or inadequate. The Board is satisfied
that the Company and the Group have fully complied with the code
provisions on internal control as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code for the aforesaid year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BUZBERES

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TRULY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Truly
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as the “Group”) set out on pages 35 to 103,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2009, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

EAERERATE —ZENFFR

BEFBBRAERAFTRR
(REESHEIMA T ERAF])

ARIZERANTT B S X5 SB35 = 103 B AT {5 I B
BERAR([ERA D REMBRR (R E5E]) 2
RAPBRE - RAVBRREER_ETNF+=
A=ZT—BZHEAMBIRAR  URBEZALFE
ZEARHEKRER  SAEGEPRNEARENE
FERE BT BRHE R EA RN -

EENGEMBBRRAREZEE

BRARZEFARABRBEELGHMAGRMHIEL
MBREEARBEERARGHZ NERECRENEE
BN R AR A P BERER o B EEHERE
Bt N R LB RN AT RS P SRR
THBERY R BPEEIE - DAERI 5 R T B IO EKRF S
MRMBHBBARFRERL  EEREAEE 225K
B RREREHA B 2 G5HAE

B2 EE

AT BEERBEARTZER - BRFERAVHERER
REER  YREBECHEZZBIETKERZBRERR
ERTZER - MAMERMARE - AT ARE
ARREFMEMALERERBEFMEE - ATT0RE
BREFMAGEM 2 BBEERETERTE -
ZERUBRATETEERS ARSI LWTE
%o NEEREXSHREMBERES I FEEANE
RERERERAL -

033



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BB RS E ()

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2009
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
15 April 2010
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

= A 3¢
meEZmElimR
For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE_ZZNF+_A=1+—HIEFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses
Administrative expenses
Distribution and selling expenses
Finance costs

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for
the year

Exchange differences arising on
translation

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Minority interests

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Minority interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic

Diluted

EAERERAT —ZEZENFFR

Notes

BfaE
Wras 5
SHEA

EH

HAb A 7
Hib 8 8
TRE M

7 5 M SHE R

M5 ER 9

BRI A28 A
PG H S h 10

ARE [Z g ) 11
REEHMEEUBA

BEREL ZINEEZER

AEEEEWALLRE
TOATEEARFEEH) -
ZA/NCIE 2SN
DB R S

THATRIEZEE AL
ZA/NCTE 2SN
DERR

BREF 15
HAK

g

2009
—EEhE
HK$’000
FET

5,804,184
(4,976,090)

828,094
25,587
(101,840)
(186,450)
(110,302)
(46,643)

408,446
(101,113)

307,333

15,611

322,944

307,333

307,333

322,944

322,944

HK$0.657% 7T

HK$0.653% T

2008
—ET)\F
HK$'000
TAT

5,669,274
(4,973,300)

695,974
86,476
(45,053)
(190,902)
(140,422)
(67,015)

339,058
(77,923)

261,135

212,340

473,475

261,121
14

261,135
473,461
14

473,475

HK$0.55/8% 7T

HK$0.55/% 7T
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Re AR R
At 31 December 2009
R=FENF+-A=+—H

2009 2008
—sTnE  —BEAF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
o5t FET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERENEE
Property, plant and equipment L E YN 16 4,168,872 4,214,029
Prepaid lease payments AN HEEKIE 17 151,647 129,630
Intangible assets EBILEE 18 11,417 18,307
Goodwill EES 413 413
Available-for-sale investments AIEHERE 19 - 5,250
Deferred tax assets FEEFHIBEE 27 8,225 754
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WEWZE - BEREZREZEN
plant and equipment E& 24,992 28,908
4,365,566 4,397,291
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories E3S 20 692,870 708,344
Prepaid lease payments TENHEERIE 17 3,665 3,713
Loans receivable RUE KR 21 17,045 53,479
Trade and other receivables JE IR TE % E b FE U SR IE 22 1,044,490 649,718
Tax recoverable AU BRI 33,079 56,997
Derivative financial instruments PTAESRTE 23 - 2,752
Bank balances and cash RTEFEMRS 24 503,086 687,915
2,294,235 2,162,918
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables FEASTBRTE I b FE A 5RIE 25 1,050,279 1,103,723
Tax liabilities MIRERS 45,087 59,369
Derivative financial instruments PTAESRTE 23 7,414 8,731
Bank and other borrowings, unsecured RITREMEES - EHHT 26 1,963,286 1,992,050
Bank overdrafts, unsecured RITHESY - EIRA - 526
3,066,066 3,164,399
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEERE (771,831) (1,001,481)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBARS
LIABILITIES 3,593,735 3,395,810
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEE
Bank and other borrowings, unsecured IRITREMEES - EEKH 26 74,784 120,569
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIEAE 27 34,897 29,136
109,681 149,705
3,484,054 3,246,105
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

RE M BIRR & ()

At 31 December 2009
RZZEZAF+-A=+—H

CAPITAL AND RESERVES MRA K

Share capital AR AR

Share premium and reserves Bt im B M

Equity attributable to owners of NARIES AE(GER
the Company

Minority interests DHIERER

Total equity MR 4ATE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 35 to 103 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15
April 2010 and are signed on its behalf by:

Lam Wai Wah, Steven

=L
DIRECTOR

EF

EAERERAT —ZZNFFR

2009

—EEREF

Notes HK$’000
Fi5E FET

28 47,294
3,436,698

3,483,992
62

3,484,054

2008
—ET)\F
HK$'000
TAT

47,288
3,198,755

3,246,043
62

3,246,105

HNEBEEFIVEZHFRAUBHRREN_F—F
FORA+HABESFLIAERFETE - AU TA

THRERE -

Wong Pong Chun, James
'K

DIRECTOR

EBEFE

037



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-ZTNF+-_A=+—HIFE

Share Capital

Share Share option Special  redemption
capital premium reserve reserve reserve
-

BA RBEE  BRERE  GARE  HORR
HK$'000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000

T TERL TR T TEn

Exchange
reserve

HERE
HK$'000
T

292,212

212,340

212,340

(note @)
(Ff3¥a)
Atflanuay 2008  RZZENE
-f-H 47,274 319,630 10,000 990 &
Profitfor the year REERF = - - - -
Other comprehensive  AEE M2
income for the year: A
- Bxchange - BEMESE
differences ZONE
arising on =8
franslation - - - - -
Total comprehensive  AEE2EMA
income for the year 2% S - - - -
Arising from acquisition WEE—ZIHEAE
of addltional interest ~ E9MERFTES
in a subsiciary kx| - - - - -
Shares issued at ERERIRG
premium 14 283 - - -
Transfer 2% - - - - -
Dividends recognised  BEREDEZRE
as distrioution (P14)
(note 14) - - - - -
At 31 December 2008 R=ZFN\E
+-A=t-B 47,288 319,913 10,000 990 8
Proftfortheyear  AEERT = - - - -
Other comprehensive  AEEEH2H
income for the year: YA
- Exchange —BEMEE
diferences ZINE
arising on =8
translation - - - - -
Totel comprehensive  AEEZERA
income forthe year &8 - - - - -
Shares issued at ERERRG
premium 6 126 - - -
Transfer B = - - - -
Dividends recognised - B2AAEZRE.
as distrioution (PizE14)
(note 14) - - - - -
At 31 December 2000 R=ETHE
+=-A=t-H 47,294 320,039 10,000 990 &
Notes:
() The special reserve represents the difference between the nominal

038

value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisitions.

Other reserves comprise statutory surplus reserve and enterprise
expansion reserve of the subsidiaries established in the People’s
Republic of China other than Hong Kong (the “PRC”) . According
to the Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries, a percentage
of net profit as reported in the PRC statutory accounts should be
transferred to statutory surplus reserve and enterprise expansion
reserve determined at the discretion of the board of directors of these
companies. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to set off
accumulated loss whilst the enterprise expansion reserve can be used
for expansion of production facilities or increase in registered capital.

504,612

15,611

15,611

520,223

fiiE

@

Total equity
attributable
Other Retained  to owners of Minority
reserves profits  the Company interests Total
ANAREA HH
EfbGifE REER BLEZEE RRER &3t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TiEn ThL TR TiEn TR

(note b)
(Hf3¥b)
311,048 2,061,085 3,032,331 - 3,082,331
- 261,121 261,121 14 261,135
- - 212,340 - 212,340
- 261,121 473,461 14 473475
- - - 48 48
297 - 297

136309 (136,309) = = =

- (600d8)  (260,046) - (260046)
MI3T 1915801 3246043 62 3246105
= 307,333 307,33 = 307,333

= . 15,611 = 15611

= 307,333 322944 = 322044

i . 132 = 132
26,840 (26,840) - , ,
= (85,127) (65,127) = (85,127)
44197 2111167 3483992 62 3484054

BBl B I T EH B A B 2 IR E{E B AR A B ph ik
FEmET 2RO EERERZ 28 -

HibEBBREETEARAMBE (TREEE) ([
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i o IREREME AR 2 AMERAE - REDEER
BAZHAFET B D L ABREETERBHERR
CEERF#R ZODLDAZEMNBRANESS
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-ZTNF+-_A=+—HIFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments
Allowance for loans receivable
Allowance for inventories
Change in fair value on derivative
financial instruments
Amortisation of development
expenditure
Amortisation of trademarks
Amortisation of technical know-how
Allowance for bad debts
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Release of prepaid lease payments
Loss on disposal/write-off of property,
plant and equipment
Government grants
Finance costs

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

(Increase) decrease in inventories

(Increase) decrease in trade and other
receivables

Decrease in trade and other payables

(Increase) decrease in derivative financial
instruments

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax refund
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid
Tax paid for other jurisdictions

NET CASH FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
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R LA B TR e LAt WK TR
(S am)3Ri
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Note
BfaE

2009

—EEhE

HK$’000
FHET

408,446
(2,939)

5,250
24,762
25,000

7,467

1,168

79
5,665
3,332

368,323
4,246

660
(1,693)
46,643

896,409
(9,526)

(382,585)
(51,751)

(6,032)

446,515
34,772
(34,523)
(93,400)

(35)

353,329

2008
—ET)\F
HK$'000
TAT

339,058
(11,223)

5,250

(2,921)

1,170

175
5,665
5178

417,918
3,713

1,701
(1,421)
67,015

831,278
139,458

433,736
(234,643)

25,457

1,195,286

(37,073)
(107,231)

1,050,982
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
FERERER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-ZTNF+-_A=+—HIFE

2009 2008
—EEhE —EENF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
BfaE FExT FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXEH
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  WEREE
equipment (306,228) (1,310,135)
Advancement of loans EREM - (42,298)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, ~ WHEWI% - BE k&
plant and equipment ZBEffiEe (24,992) (28,908)
Addition of prepaid lease payments TR E FRIEE N (26,215) (7,518)
Acquisition of intangible assets W B E (22) (3,196)
Additional interest in a subsidiary RITB A Az fEMER 31 - (324)
Repayment of loans receivable BERKER 11,672 45,455
Interest received BUF & 2,939 11,223
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME  BENMEEME
plant and equipment FIE 11,310 10,319
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REXBHMERAZRES TR
ACTIVITIES (331,536) (1,325,382)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES &R
Repayment of bank and other borrowings (B R1T R HAEE (860,132) (1,965,085)
Dividends paid BARRE (85,127) (260,046)
Interest paid on bank and other EARITREMEERE
borrowings (46,643) (67,015)
New bank and other borrowings raised FERIT R EMES 785,583 2,691,048
Proceeds from issue of shares BT D FT1S SR 132 297
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING BEZE(FER)ELEZERS
ACTIVITIES R (206,187) 399,199
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE INCASH  H&RBRLSZEER (BL)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B nFRE (184,394) 124,799
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FUZRERAELEEEE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 687,389 553,823
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE ER# & o2&
CHANGES 91 8,767
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZASREEEE
END OF THE YEAR, represented by HE 45 503,086 687,389
Bank balances and cash RITHEF MRS 503,086 687,915
Bank overdrafts RITEX - (526)
503,086 687,389
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME
For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-ZTNF+-_A=+—HIFE

1.

General

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company. The Company is a public limited company with its
shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) . The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “General Information” to the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is United States dollar.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars which is different from the functional currency of
the Company, as the directors of the Company consider that
Hong Kong dollar is the most appropriate presentation currency
in view of its place of listing.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the business of
manufacture and sale of liquid crystal display (“‘LCD”) products
and electronic consumer products.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity of the Group in light of the fact that the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by HK$771,831,000 as
at 31 December 2009. As at 31 December 2009, the Group
had bank and other borrowings of HK$2,038,070,000, of
which HK$1,308,908,000 were in breach of covenants and
accordingly, an aggregate amount of HK$366,792,000 with
maturity date over one year was included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under current liabilities.

EFAERERAT —EENFFR

—RER

ARARFAEHERIBEASHSE R BDEAEMMA
YR—HXBRAR c ARER—EALETAR
RE - ERMEEBHERZAAR DR ([H
RATD) B o RARGEMMEE R EBEEM
B MU N F IR —RER | —EHRER o

RRBZINEEERET - ARAIEELERE
HImind  REEEAREAZ2EE
BAR B B MR TIAR R RN EEE B AN 278

TTER °

ARRDREZEBRAR - ENBRR TR
BREERHEREE TS (REBREDE
mMEFHEER °

mEMBRRZEREE

ERAEER-_ZTTNF+-_A=+—HZ
B A EBBEE RS E E771,831,000% T -
RRBGETERERE  ARREEDEE
ERAEERRZRDES - RZZETNF
+ZA=+—8  A5KEHERTEREMER
2,038,070,0007%8 JT. + £ A1 1,308,908,000/% JT
BRTEZOGR Bt EREA—FNE
©%¥8366,792,00078 7T Jh 5 A SR & B RS AR IR A
RBEEET o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e M EmR MR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2009

HEZ
2.

042

ZTEAF+=A=ST-ALFE

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 2.

Financial Statements (continueq)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group
has repaid HK$310,962,000 of the bank borrowings which
were in breach of covenants as at 31 December 2009. In
addition, the Group has recently received waiver letters from
certain banks which confirmed that they have agreed to waive
the right to demand for immediate repayment of the loan
balances of HK$666,055,000. Accordingly, bank borrowings
of HK$241,042,000 which were classified as current liabilities
at the end of the reporting period will be repaid after 2010
according to the original terms of repayment and the remaining
balance of HK$425,013,000 will be repaid according to the
original terms of repayment in 2010. The directors of the
Company believe that these loan facilities will continue to be
available and will not be withdrawn within the next twelve
months from the end of the reporting period. Taking into
account of the internally generated funds, gross proceeds
amounting to HK$243,000,000 from the placement of shares
subsequent to the end of the reporting period (see note 38) and
the available banking facilities, the directors of the Company
are confident that the Group will be able to meet its financial
obligations when they fall due in the foreseeable future and
be able to operate on a going concern basis. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

Truly International Holdings Limited

REMBRRZEREE @)

RIREBERE  AEEEREERZZZTN
F+ZA=+—HERZNERZRITEE
310,962,000 7T ° It5h + AN E BRI B R
METIRTEL 2R R - BRZERITHE
e ESRANR (B8 B 5/ 4517666,055,000/%8 7T
ZHEF| o Ht  RBEBARIARB A EMNR
1718 E241,042,0008 TR =S —TF 2 181%
JRETEFIEREE - MR T 4577 425,013,000
BTN —SFIRFFERIEREE - &
RNEIEENRE  ZERTEEBEELEMET
SRHERLERERRK T ZEA AREE -
RABEBRE Ltk AEBRAPEEZE
& RBEHERENRERDAEFIBLE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e EHmRMETE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2009

BE-TENE+-A=t+—BLEE

3. Application of New or Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised Standards, Amendments and Interpretations (“new
and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

FERAFTREETEEMBREE

RI(T &8 FHRE 2R 1)

REER  NEBCRBUTHEESHEIA
(BB GERE DBM 2R REETE
Al - BRI BB ([HR] REETEEMBRE

Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007)
HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8

HK(FRIC) - Int 9 & HKAS 39
(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15

HK(IFRIC) - Int 16

HK(FRIC) - Int 18

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Presentation of Financial Statements
Borrowing Costs

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments

Operating Segments

Embedded Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the Construction of Real
Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation

Transfers of Assets from Customers

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2008, except for the amendment to
HKFRS 5 that is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2009 in relation to the amendment to
paragraph 80 of HKAS 39

8]) -

BAGTHERES
(Z2ZLEEBIA)
BB GR35
(ZEZLEBIA)
BAGTHEREDRR R
ESEACH)!
BEAMBEREENEIHR
BEGHERETH

(&37])
BEMBHREERF2RE
(3])
BRMBHREERFETHR
(&7])

BB ERES
5 (EEMBRERER
B&)-REFRER
SEPERIE30% (53]
5 (EEMBRERER
85€)-REE13%R
5 (EEMBRERER
BE)-REBE15%
5 (EEMBRERER
852)-2EE16%
5 (EEMBRERER
852)-REE18%
BB EREER(ERT)

BRHBREER(ET)

HTHRRAZS

ETEN

BRELZMHESRIA
REfE

WEAR - AREHERS
BERRZREMA

SR 5 REUH

BB TEMREET

RFEHERE

FIERE S

BN REFRE

HREFPEE

“ZT)\FRiH 2 EERE
WEER 2z Mg - —FF
NEEA—AZAERR
ZFEHRENERY
BREERET 2 BT
BRoh

“ERNERMHERRE
HEER 2 ot - B
BRGEAF39%E80
BT

Except as disclosed below, the adoption of the new and revised
HKFRSs has had no material effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the current or prior accounting
period.

EAERERAT —ZZNFFR

BT SCPTIREEE SN - BRANFTAT RS ERT BB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
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Application of New or Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation
and disclosure only

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology changes
(including revised titles for the financial statements) and changes
in the format and content of the financial statements.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that has not resulted in a
redesignation of the Group’s reportable segments as compared
with the primary reportable segments determined in accordance
with HKAS 14 but the measurement of segment result has been
changed.

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
(Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures required
in relation to fair value measurements in respect of financial
instruments which are measured at fair value. The Group
has not provided comparative information for the expanded
disclosures in accordance with the transitional provision set out
in the amendments. The amendments also expand and amend
the disclosures required in relation to liquidity risk which has no
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

New and revised HKFRSs affecting the reported
results and/or financial position

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) Borrowing Costs

In previous years, the Group expensed all borrowing costs
that were directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset when they were incurred.
HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) removes the option previously
available to expense all borrowing costs when incurred. The
adoption of HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) has resulted in the Group
changing its accounting policy to capitalise all such borrowing
costs as part of the cost of the qualifying asset. The Group
has applied the revised accounting policy to borrowing costs
relating to qualifying assets for which the commencement date
for capitalisation is on or after 1 January 2009 in accordance
with the transitional provisions in HKAS 23 (Revised 2007). As
the revised accounting policy has been applied prospectively
from 1 January 2009, this change in accounting policy has not
resulted in restatement of amounts reported in respect of prior
accounting periods and has had no impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

Truly International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Application of New or Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting the financial
performance and/or financial position

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

As part of Improvements to HKFRSs (2008), HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements has been amended
to clarify whether derivatives that are classified as held for
trading in accordance with HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement should be presented as current
or non-current. The amendment requires derivatives that are
held primarily for trading purposes to be presented as current
regardless of their maturity dates. In addition, the amendment
requires derivatives that are not held for trading purposes to
be classified as current or non-current on the basis of their
settlement date. Prior to the amendment, the Group presented,
as current, all derivatives that are classified as derivative financial
instruments in accordance with HKAS 39. The amendment has
had no impact on the Group’s results for the reported periods.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

Standards, Amendments or Interpretations that have been

issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of
Improvements to HKFRSs 2008!

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 20092

FERAFTREETEEMBREE
AT &BMBHREER D)
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HKAS 24 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9

HK(FRIC) - Int 14 (Amendment)

HK(FRIC) - Int 17

HK(FRIC) - Int 19

—EENEFR

Related Party Disclosures®

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements!

Classification of Rights Issues*

Eligible Hedged Items!

Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopters?

Limited Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters®

Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions®

Business Combinations!

Financial Instruments’
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement®

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners'

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Application of New or Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting the financial
performance and/or financial position (Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 and
1 January 2010, as appropriate.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February
2010.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group’s
accounting for business combination for which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 January 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect
the accounting treatment for changes in the Group’s ownership
interest in a subsidiary.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets and
will be effective from 1 January 2013, with earlier application
permitted. The Standard requires all recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to be measured at either
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
(i) are held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows and (ii) have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured at fair
value. The application of HKFRS 9 might affect the classification
and measurement of the Group’s financial assets.

Truly International Holdings Limited
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Application of New or Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting the financial
performance and/or financial position (Continued)

In addition, as part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2009, HKAS 17 Leases has been amended in relation to
the classification of leasehold land. The amendments will be
effective from 1 January 2010, with earlier application permitted.
Before the amendments to HKAS 17, lessees were required
to classify leasehold land as operating leases and presented
as prepaid lease payments in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The amendments have removed such a
requirement. Instead, the amendments require the classification
of leasehold land to be based on the general principles set out
in HKAS 17, that are based on the extent to which risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset lie with the
lessor or the lessee. The application of the amendments to
HKAS 17 might affect the classification and measurement of
the Group’s leasehold land at revalued amount.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised Standards, Amendments or
Interpretations will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
consolidated financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved
where the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein.
Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of
those interests at the date of the original business combination
and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of
the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess
of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated
against the interests of the Group except to the extent that
the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition
under HKFRS 3 Business Combinations are recognised at their
fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business
combination, the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and operations
of another entity is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)
Goodwill (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of sales tax, trade discounts and returns.

Revenue from sale of goods are recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes other than properties under
development, are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant
and equipment, other than buildings and properties under
development, over their estimated useful lives, and after taking
into account of their estimated residual value using the reducing
balance method.

Buildings are depreciated over their useful lives, where shorter,
in the terms of respective leases, using the straight-line method.

Properties under development are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. No depreciation is provided in
respect of properties under development. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property within property,
plant and equipment, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in the profit or loss in the period
in which the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets including technical know-how acquired and
the cost incurred in the registration of trademarks with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)
Intangible assets (Continued)
Research and development expenditure (Continued)

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have
been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building
are considered separately for the purpose of lease classification,
unless the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, in which case, the entire lease
is generally treated as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment. To the extent the allocation of
the lease payments can be made reliably, leasehold interests in
land are accounted for as operating leases and amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the
translation reserve).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale for which the commencement
date for capitalisation is on or after 1 January 2009, are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Government grants related to
depreciable assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss over the useful lives of the related assets. Other
government grants are recognised as revenue over the periods
necessary to match them with the costs for which they are
intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government
grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years, and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial asset or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Financial assets at FVTPL comprise derivative financial
instruments deemed as financial assets held for trading. At the
end of the reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with the
changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At the end of the reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including loans receivable,
trade and other receivables and bank balances and cash) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

At the end of the reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets other than financial assets at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Obijective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payment, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade and other receivables
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL comprise derivative financial
instruments deemed as financial liabilities held for trading. At
the end of the reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with the
changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
bank and other borrowings and bank overdrafts) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Truly International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

EES
4.

—EEAE+=A=+—BILEE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees after 7 November 2002
and vested on or after 1 January 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted on or after 1 January
2005 is recognised as an expense in full at grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.
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HEZ

4.

060

TENF+=A=+-BILEE
Significant Accounting Policies (continueq)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Share options granted to employees after 7 November 2002
and vested on or after 1 January 2005 (Continued)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to employees on or before 7 November
2002, or granted after 7 November 2002 and vested before 1
January 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded
in the consolidated financial statements until such time as the
options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in the profit
or loss in respect of the value of options granted. Upon the
exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued are
recorded as additional share capital at the nominal value of the
shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share over
the nominal value of the shares is recorded as share premium.
Options which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date
are deleted from the register of outstanding options.

Impairment of assets (other than goodwill)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Truly International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R I ERAR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009

EES
5.

ZEENFFZA=FT—HILFE

Revenue

Revenue represents the gross proceeds received and
receivable on the sale of goods during the year, net of sales tax,
trade discounts and returns, and is analysed as follows:

Sales of LCD products
Sales of electronic consumer products

Segment Information

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating Segments with
effect from 1 January 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard
that requires operating segments to be identified on the basis
of internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker for the
purpose of allocating resources to segments and assessing
their performance. In contrast, the predecessor Standard (HKAS
14, Segment Reporting) required an entity to identify two sets of
segments (business and geographical) using a risks and returns
approach. In the past, the Group’s primary reporting format
was business segments. The application of HKFRS 8 has not
resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s reportable segments
as compared with the primary reportable segments determined
in accordance with HKAS 14. However, the measurement of
segment result has been changed.

Information reported to the Group’s chief operating decision
maker for the purpose of resources allocation and assessment
of performance is focused on the sales of different type of
products. Thus the group is currently organised into two
operating segments which are sales of LCD products and
electronic consumer products. The existing identification of
the Group’s operating segments under HKFRS 8 is consistent
with that of the prior year’s presentation of business segments
under HKAS 14. The information of each operating segment is
as follows:

LCD products - manufacture and distribution of LCD
products
Electronic consumer products - manufacture and distribution of electronic

consumer products such as personal
health care products and electrical device.

EAERERAT —ZEZNFFR

HERABREER
HEETHEEM

g 2

WestE FNEmIHE 2 B W R B FTERIER
BB HEN BHIENRE - DT

2009 2008
—2BAE  —TENE
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tl Tt
5,587,175 5,655,605
217,009 113,669
5,804,184 5,669,274
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
BHE-_ZTAF+-A=+—RALEFE

6. Segment Information (Continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

by operating segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2009

REVENUE
External sales
Inter-segment sales

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

RESULT
Segment result
Unallocated expenses

Profit before tax

062

LCD
products
R
BATRBER
HK$’000
FHBT
&
SNSH 5,587,175
DEEES -
5,587,175
&
DERES 402,366
AORAX
A&

Truly International Holdings Limited

PHEER #)
PHEWERES

REERZEED BB DHWAREEDITT

BE-FENF+-A=+—AIFE

Electronic
consumer
products
EF
HEEM
HK$’000
FET

217,009
157,702

374,711

Eliminations Consolidated

ESf: we
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F#ET

- 5,804,184
(157,702) -
(157,702) 5,804,184

DR E TR E R IS ERSH ©

24,145

426,511
(18,065)

408,446
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R I ERAR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009
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6. Segment Information (Continued) 6.

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2008

REVENUE
External sales
Inter-segment sales

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

RESULT
Segment result
Unallocated expenses

Profit before tax

LCD
products
R a
BRI Em
HK$'000
FHBT
&
SNSH 5,555,605
DIEMHEE -
5,555,605
DEEE 349,535
AORAX
A&

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs and directors’
salaries. This is the measure reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

EAERERAT —FTENFFR

>HEER®)
DHEWRREEE)

BE—FZE)\Ff - A=1—HIFZ

Electronic

consumer
products Eliminations  Consolidated

BT
JHEE EDES| FE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T FET
113,669 - 5,669,274
171,317 (171,317) -
284,986 (171,317) 5,669,274

DREREHE TR E RIS ERE °

6,061 355,596

(16,538)

339,058

RESBN G RREM T 2 A B &5
BER—E > BN ER DB RITEREEK
AREEHENEDBARICER AR E
RLEBRRERS U REREFEEREN
AHHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
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Segment Information (continued)

Other information

For the year ended 31 December 2009

6. 7EER®

Hitv &

BE—FETNFf - A=1—HIFEZ

Amounts included in

AESBENEREN

the measure of okl
segment profits:
Depreciation and amortisation & [z #E$4
Loss on disposal/write-off of HE MEDE - BE
property, plant and equipment HiE 2 A
Allowance for bad debts EIRREHE
Allowance for loans receivables  FEU B ki 15
Allowance for inventory FERE

For the year ended 31 December 2008

LCD
products
g
BTRBRER
HK$’000
FET

328,472

640
3,332
24,762
25,000

Electronic
consumer
products
EF
HEEM
HK$’000
THET

46,763

20

Consolidated

o)
HK$’000
TR

375,235

660
3,332
24,762
25,000

BE—FZE)\FL - A=1—HIFZ

Amounts included in
the measure of
segment profits:

Depreciation and amortisation

Loss on disposal/write-off of
property, plant and equipment

Allowance for bad debts

Segment assets and liabilities are not disclosed as they are not
regularly reviewed by chief operating decision maker.

Electronic
LCD consumer
products products
it T
RN eREE HEEMm
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
AESERNAMBEDN
B
PrE R 377,963 46,965
HE MY - BE
PE L=l 1,624 177
ERREE 5178 =

Truly International Holdings Limited

Consolidated
e

HK$’000
TAET

424,928

1,701
5178

HREEMABETEHIBEERRHEAE
HAZRR] - M TR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

BE
6.

ZEENFFZA=FT—HILFE

Segment Information (continued)
Geographical information
The following table sets out information about (i) the Group’s

revenue from external customers by location of customers and
(i) the Group’s non-current assets by location of assets.

>HEER®)
it & & B
TERBIAEEIRE S e E S ENIDE

P i as Ry AN SR Bl B E T & 5 BBEVIER
BEENER :

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

SMERE P W ERBEE
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EFhEF T N\F —EENE T N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET BT F#ET TET
PRC A 4,180,328 4,507,916 4,306,115 4,355,712
South Korea M 993,976 414,004 81 87
Japan B 125,847 109,410 - =
Hong Kong &5 170,439 268,661 51,132 35,488
Europe B 126,017 179,920 - -
Others Hib 207,577 189,363 13 =
5,804,184 5,669,274 4,357,341 4,391,287
Notes : BT
1. Included in revenues arising from sales to external customers 1. TR B BUM B B b [ SN AR5 P A 6 UK

in Europe and others, there is no individual countries which are

material and required for separate disclosure.

2. Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred
tax assets.

Information about major customers

Included in revenues arising from sales of LCD and electronic
consumer products approximately HK$509 million (2008:
HK$148 million) and HK$457 million (2008: HK$350 million)
respectively which arose from sales to the Group’s two major
customers which in aggregate accounted for over 10% of the
Group’s revenue for the year.

EAERERAT —ZEZNFFR

o MEFEERIGAERDRLAEFH
= o

2. ERPEETEBESRTIANRRIERRAEE -

FREFEHR

BRRBTRBERETEEBEMHEEE 2 WHEP
D RIEH5.00EH (=TT /\F 1.48(8%8 )
Kas7TEBT(ZZEZTNEF : 35EBIL) KA
MAREMAREZHE  AREAEEALRF
EURESEI10% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R MR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-_ZTZTNF+-_A=+—RHILFE
7. Other Income

Other income includes:

Government grants (note 36)
Interest income

Rental income

Scrap Sales

Tax refund on reinvestment (Note)

HA W A B4 -

B R (PiYRE36)
ASE PN
GEEALION

BEHIE B RR(EE) -

Note: Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
immediate holding company of the PRC subsidiaries, 1= F|4-&
BEHFR /A A, is entitled for the tax refund on the reinvestment on
its profit. The tax approval was obtained from the relevant tax

bureau before the financial year end date.

8. Other Gains and Losses

Net foreign exchange losses

Allowance for loans receivable

Fair value change on derivative financial
instruments

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments

Allowance for doubtful debt

Loss on disposal/write-off of property,
plant and equipments

066

SN B 1RIFEE
JEW E TR

7. HalkA
2009 2008
—BENE —ET)\fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
385t FHT
1,693 1,421
2,939 11,223
5,767 5,491
6,782 3,182
56,861

iR RIEFBEZBERIER DENBEARZ
BEERERQREMNFERERARAELELER
TS ERRE ZBBRA - RPBFEHER
BEIZAT - CESHABREEHEEL

FASBIANTFHEES

A SR ERERE

R

HE WIHWE - BB RRE

BB

Truly International Holdings Limited

8. HER

2009 2008
—ETNE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
Tl BT
60,369 35,845
24,762 —
7,467 (2,921)
5,250 5,250
3,332 5178

660 1,701
101,840 45,053
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R I ERAR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE_ZTNF+-_A=+—HIFE

9. Finance Costs 9. HMIKEAR
2009 2008
—ETAF ZZEENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET THT
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITEEREMERAFR
wholly repayable within five years 2EMEECEENTE 46,643 67,015
10. Income Tax Expense 10. FI8FiZH
2009 2008
—ETAF ZEENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET THT
Current tax: REARRIA -
Hong Kong a5 49,118 8,662
PRC Enterprise Income Tax P EMRER 60,270 77,271
Other jurisdictions B al AR 35 5
109,423 85,938
Overprovision in prior years: LAfE & /2 HRRR R
Hong Kong HE (6,600) (3,116)
102,823 82,822
Deferred tax (note 27) BIEF A (P7E27)
— Current year —AKFE (1,710) (2,984)
— Attributable to a change in tax rate — R REFELE - (1,915)
(1,710) (4,899)
Income tax expenses for the year REEZAEHRYTH 101,113 77,923
On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed RZZBEENFRNA-+"8 BBELELSEB
the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax rate —EENFERALHESZR HPBEHR -
from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment EN ZEENTREERE AT EHRE X
2008/2009. Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at H17.5%@E16.5% ° At * BEFSTTIRM

16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

B E 2 (At RS F 2 16.5%=1 H ©

EAEBRAERAF

Under the law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulations of
the EIT Law. The tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from
1 January 2008. Pursuant to the relevant law and regulations in
the PRC, one of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries is classified
as advance technology entity, which entitled to 15% PRC
enterprise income tax for the following three years from 2009
to 2011. The tax approval was obtained from the relevant tax
bureau after 31 December 2009.

—ETREFH

RIEFREARKEMBE M ZEMESFE([DERS
FioE ) R EMBEEBEIES - PRWB A
AIEZZEE N\F—A—HRBZHEE25% IR
W¢l2ﬁ%£¢&£ﬁ AN &) — [ BT

REEDBATERINER  RZTTNF
5= T**E FARNZE15% 2 HEDEME
e —ETAF+-_A=+—H%  CESHE
%H%EZM%ﬁm
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R I ERAR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE_ZTNF+-_A=+—HIFE

10. Income Tax Expense (Continued)

Income tax arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

Pursuant to PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and the Detailed
Implementation Rules, distribution of the profits earned by
the PRC subsidiaries since 1 January 2008 is subject to PRC
withholding tax at the applicable tax rate of 5%.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled
to the profit before tax per the consolidated statement of

068

comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the average tax rate of 15.48%
(2008: 23.01%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

QOverprovision in respect of prior years

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Withholding tax on distributed earnings
of PRC subsidiary

Withholding tax on undistributed earnings
of PRC subsidiary

Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised

Effect of change in tax rate

Others

Income tax expense for the year

Note: The average income tax rate for the year ended 31 December

10. Fi8

Bt

ARERBERZHRAHR -

1 o

B A AT )

R HB % 15.48%
(ZET)\4 : 23.01%)BF
IR LTS s drhis-7% -

BENRBAZ R &

BIEFEHBEREG
AERARBBIEZ R E
TEMELRREDIRER
Z I EH
E = YNGIE S Rl
Z I EH
B H AT EAARRERR IS B 1R

BreervE
At

REFHMB/H

2009 and 2008 represents the weighted average tax rate of the
operations in different jurisdictions on the basis of the relevant
amounts of net profits before tax and the relevant rate for the

year.

2009
—EEhE
HK$’000
FET

408,446

63,246
5,285
(326)
(6,600)
4,642
24,857
10,000
(690)

699

101,113

REAM RDERE R FTEE L < RSB TVIRIE B B8 7]

RIBHBEGEAFEOERBRGDIAR - B =
T N\EFE—-A— A KT EHE R R
B i NI ZB 12 5% 038 A T R B R B TR0 AR 1S

REF 2 PSHX GRS 2 E B ER Z R
A& A 2 EERIAT

2008
—ET)\F
HK$'000
TAT

339,058

78,009
18,628

(14,747)
(3,116)
928

(1,915)
136

77,923

izt : HE—TTAFR_ZTTNEF+=-A=+—8H

LEEFE 7 PR SH RAERBER B AR A F
FRRI TR K F AR B R AT B 2 TR BAME

B2 AT IR R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R I ERAR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE_ZTNF+-_A=+—HIFE

10. Income Tax Expense (Continued) 10. BRIt
For the years of assessment from 2001/2002 to 2005/2006, BERER(HERRAEARREZEWNBA A
the Inland Revenue Department (“IRD”) issued profits tax BHZFERTH  ERZTT—F =%
assessments in aggregate of approximately HK$55,050,000 —FE-FTH/EENFERBETZZ
against a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The 4238 49 555,050,0008 7T ° A& B E FEEZ IR
Group lodged objections with the IRD against the protective FEMIHATERRERYE - HIEREEER
assessments. The IRD agreed to hold over the tax claimed Fr ) 25 - AT R 2B A RZAR
completely subject to the subsidiary in question purchasing REFREZAZBERNS - RZZTZENFR
tax reserve certificates for those years of assessment. The ZETNFFZA=T—RH  ZERUSFBH
tax reserve certificates amounting to HK$32,402,000 were 32,402,000 7T - EHIEBERBAREE - &
purchased by the relevant subsidiary as at 31 December 2008 H14,666,0008 TEBRBRENR -_EZNEF+=
and 2009, of which HK$4,666,000 was refunded by IRD to the A=+—HZ#&RETARNT -
Company subsequent to 31 December 2009.
The directors of the Company believe that no profits tax is RABESRE  ASBEEEREANBE QT
payable by the Group in respect of the concerned subsidiary BAAAIER - TMEARBRREETIRELS
and no provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax in respect of the BRI -
protective assessments is necessary.
11. Profit for the Year 1. REERF
2009 2008
—ETAF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Profit for the year has been arrived at N S R A& HI B T 51 &8 -
after charging:
Auditor’s remuneration 2% EL R B & 2,628 2,029
Cost of inventories (excluding allowance  IFEKAN(TMEIETFEREE
for inventories HK$25,000,000; 2008: nil) 25,000,000870)(ZEZE/)\F : &) 4,951,090 4,973,300
Depreciation and amortisation on: IATRIE e R
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 368,323 417,918
Development expenditure included in ERIHGTABEENA)
cost of sales 1,168 1,170
Technical know-how included in Rt B M G ABEERA)
cost of sales 5,665 5,665
Trademarks included in cost of sales RZ(GT A ERA) 79 175
375,235 424,928
Operating lease rental in respect of HEME L EHOES
rented premises 6,180 7,277
Release of prepaid lease payments R TR ERIA 4,246 3,713
Staff costs, inclusive of directors’ BINXA  BREESMHE
remuneration:
Salaries and other benefits He REMER 402,983 383,095
Retirement benefits scheme RIRAEFFT B 451
contributions 27,691 29,913
430,674 413,008

Profit of HK$88,846,000 (2008: HK$270,236,000) has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

EAERERAT —ZEZNFFR

TORMERARRZ M ERRPERRE o

88,846,000/ 7t (ZZZ )\ 4F : 270,236,000/
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R I ERAR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE_ZTNF+-_A=+—HIFE

12. Directors’ Remuneration

070

2009
Directors’ fees:
Executive
Indiependent non-executive
Other emoluments paid to
the executive directors:
Salaries and other benefits
Performance related incentive
payments (note)
Contributions to retirement
benefit scheme

2008
Directors’ fees:
Executive
Independent non-executive
QOther emoluments paid to
the executive directors:
Salaries and other benefits
Performance related incentive
payments (note)
Contributions to retirement
beneft scheme

Lam
Wai Wah,
Steven
(Chairman
and Managing
Director)
ez
(XRR
ESHgR)
HK$'000
Thn
ZERNE
EELEE
#f -
B -
XIFHTES
2R ftHe -
EoREMEN 1,950
BRER 88
(M) 6,262
BINEHEIRR
24
8,256
“2ENE
EELEE
#f -
B -
XFHTES
RS -
e REMEN 2,031
BEER 88
(Ht) 5,175
RIMEET I
24
7,230

Wong
Pong Chun,
James
(Executive
Director)

B
(47E%)
HK$'000
T

924

479

24

1,421

1,146

Cheung
Tat Sang,
James
(Marketing
Director)
REE
(TiRkE
£3)
HK$'000
Thr

1,431

635

24

2,09

24

1928

Note: The performance related incentive payments are determined as a
percentage of the turnover and operating profit of the Group for

the year ended 31 December 2009 and 2008.

12. EEME

Li
Jian Hua
(Production

Managing Chung

Director)  Kam Kwong
£
(EERES

faga) R

HK$'000 HK$ 000

Thn Thn

- 88

1,718 -

75 -

12 -

2,505 88

= 88

1,888 =

640 -

12 -

2,540 88

Bt =E

Ip
Cho Ting,
Spencer

£
HK$'000
T

50

50

50

50

Heung
Kai Sing Total
R L
HK$1000 HK$ 000
Thn Thn
50 188
- 6,023
- 8,1m
- 84
50 14,466
50 188
= 6,633
= 6,127
= 84
50 13,032

CEEER Y RS VRAEEBE_TTNF

R-FENF+-A=+—BILEFERER
BB 2 — LI -

Truly International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e M mRMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-_ZTZTNF+-_A=+—RHILFE
13. Employees’ Emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2008: three) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are set out in note 12 above. The emoluments of
the remaining one (2008: two) individuals were as follows:

13. EEME

AEBREREFMALH  HE(ZZTZTN
F:ZR)ABARRIZES  ENESHBEIRR L
XHE12 - HBA— R (ZZEEN\F : MB) AL
ZEnT

2009 2008
—EERE —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FET
Salaries and other benefits e REMmET 1,787 3,494
Performance related incentive payments ~ Bd 245540 2 #54 171 512
Contributions to retirement benefit RIRENETEIEEFR
scheme 12 24
1,970 4,030
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BHAEEME 22BN T -
2009 2008
—EERE —ETNF
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEEH BE %R
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0018 722,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,00177T 23,000,000/ 7T - 1
14. Dividends 14. RE
2009 2008
—EERE —FEN\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT T
Dividend recognised as distribution RAFERRAED RIS
during the year:
2009 Interim dividend of 17 HK cents ZEENF 2R HREERA7HIL
(2008 Interim dividend of ZEENGFHEHRE
25 HK cents per share ER%257811) 80,399 118,220
2008 Final dividend of 1 HK cent ZEE)N\F 2 RERE KRB
(2008: 2007 final dividend of —EENF  —ETHHF
30 HK cents) per share 2 REAIR BB ARB0AL) 4,728 141,826
85,127 260,046

EAERERAT —ZEZNFFR
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R I ERAR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009

HEZ

14.

15.

072

ZENF+-A=+—HBILFE

Dividends (continueq) 14. RE (»)
The final dividend of 10 HK cents in respect of the year ended EEEEFREHE_ZSTNF+ A=+ —
31 December 2009 (2008: final dividend of 1 HK cent in respect HIEFE 2 AR EFRA0BI(ZEZNFE
of the year ended 31 December 2008) per share has been HE_ZZ\F+ZA=+—HIEFEZKRH
proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the REERAAB) - AL HRFANERERRE
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. FRE LHE -
Earnings Per Share 15. BREF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is BREREF R GRE SRR TR T3 8ERET
based on the following data: g
Earnings &%
2009 2008
—EENF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&TT
Earnings for the purposes of basic R{EETE BIRER REE Z A
and diluted earnings per share Z & F 307,333 261,121
Number of shares RO E
2009 2008
—EEAE ZEENF

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purposes of
basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:

Share options issued by the Company

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purposes of
diluted earnings per share

Rt LR A B2 I
TR
472,894,322 472,805,938

BEEBRESTE

RRRIFTEITZ B HE 250,238 349,309

FfEstE SIREH A2
TR
473,144,560 473,155,247
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mEMBRE

By ot ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE_ZTNF+-_A=+—HIFE

16. Property, Plant and Equipment

Buildings
BT
HK$'000
Tin

COST KAE
At 1 January 2008 RZZZ\F—F—H 627,297
Currency realignment ERAE 19,069
Transfer B 226,254
Additions NE -
Acquisition of a subsidiary - NG =
Disposals/write off e /M =
At 31 December 2008 RZZEEN\E+-A=1—H 872,620
Transfer H 91,828
Additions NE 648
Disposals/write off WE /s =
At 31 December 2009 R-ZEHhE+-A=1-A 965,096

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT  HERFE

At 1 January 2008 R=EZ\F—F—H 91,796
Currency realignment AR 1,611
Provided for the year AEERE 21,009
Eliminated on disposals/write off e /M =
At 31 December 2008 RZEEN\F+-A=1—H 114,416
Provided for the year TEERE 25,432
Eliminated on disposalsfwrite off HE /i =
At 31 December 2009 R=BEAF+=A=+-B 139848

CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2009 R-EEAEt-A=1-H 825,248
At 31 December 2008 RZEEN\F+-A=+—H 758,204

The cost of buildings is depreciated over forty years or the
terms of the respective leases, whichever is the shorter, using
the straight-line method.

The other items of property, plant and equipment other than
properties under development are depreciated on a reducing
balance method at the following rates per annum:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15% to 50%
Plant and machinery 11% to 40%
Motor vehicles 25% to 45%

EAERERAT —ZEZNFFR

16. Y% - MEKRHE

Furniture, Properties
fixturesand  Plant and Motor under
equipment  machinery vehicles development Total
B %E

kRfE BEREE RE BEROE 8B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TEL TERL T

354,901 3,349,649 33,942 213,493 4578,882

19034 90891 668 12761 142423
- - - (26254 -

2785 1183190 1872 162832 1350179
113 - - - 113
B06) (2341 (3004 - (s74)
376507 4601389 82488 162832 6,045,856
. £ - (01829 =
%59 205174 - 73765 33513
(1190 (18,501) (r24) - (0415

410,886 4,808,062 31,764 144,769 6,360,577

156765 1004446 21562 - 1,364,569
8471 52,430 549 - 6306
BATT 358,241 3191 - 47918
(1) (11330 2,39) - {371
200712 1493787 22,912 - 1831827
34007 306,061 2823 - 36832
(177) 771 (557) - (8445)
234542 1,792,137 25178 - 2,191,705
176344 3,015,925 6586 144760 4,168,872
175815 3,107,602 9576 162832 4,214,029

BFZRANEREAD+FERANEHEEE
FHUAREERE)NE -

Hp%  BERREIRE (RERTYE
SN ARRBEIERUE - AT FREFAENE ¢

BRI~ RBREE 15%Z50%
R K =S 11%ZE40%
RE 25%Z45%
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R I ERAR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE_ZTNF+-_A=+—HIFE

16. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 16. ¥ - BRERRZE#)
In previous years, certain plant and machinery were depreciated RBEFE - & THE RS T A IER
on a reducing balance method at 15% per annum. With R IBNMEXRAENE - BZTZENEF
effect from 1 January 2009, these plant and machinery are —RA—B® ZEHERERIZBAFER
depreciated at 11% per annum, which reflects the industry’s STENE  RMEAKBRUZSEEAGRASE
experience about the useful life of such assets. The change in HREE - EXNREELRLITEERR
depreciation rate has decreased the depreciation charge by 62,363,000/ 7T °

HK$62,363,000.

2009 2008
—EBAE  —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FH&TT
The carrying value of the Group’s property it 7N 6= [ 4 # #2s ~ BEE{E
interests shown above comprises: BIE
Leasehold properties in Hong Kong RIEFHROESBEES
held under Medium-term leases ZTHEYEE 9,364 9,689
Leasehold properties in the PRC R BT BRFHE
held under Medium-term leases ZTHEYE 960,653 911,347
970,017 921,036
17. Prepaid Lease Payments 17. BHHEERE
2009 2008
—EBRE  —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET F&T
The Group’s prepaid lease payments AEBEBEMNEERIERTR
comprise:
Leasehold land in Hong Kong RIEPHROESBEE
held under medium-term lease ZHHE L 8,798 9,011
Land use rights in the PRC RIEF BT ERE
held under medium-term lease 2 T Hb{E R 146,514 124,332
155,312 133,343
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HMEHRE BTN -
Non-current asset SEMENEE 151,647 129,630
Current asset MENEEE 3,665 3,713
155,312 133,343
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R I ERAR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE_ZTNF+-_A=+—HIFE

18. Intangible Assets 8. BMIEEE
Development Technical
expenditure know-how  Trademarks Total
BRXE BWEEAE L= wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
TAT FHT THT THT
COST BAE
At 1 January 2008 R-ZFENF—A—H 43,602 19,601 1,412 64,615
Additions INE - 3,060 136 3,196
At 31 December 2008 R-ZEENE+-_A=1+—H 43,602 22,661 1,548 67,811
Additions NE - - 22 22
At 31 December 2009 R-ZEFENF+=-A=+-—H 43,602 22,661 1,570 67,833
AMORTISATION b ]
At 1 January 2008 R-ZEZN\F—A—H 41,264 - 1,230 42,494
Provided for the year IRE SR 1,170 5,665 175 7,010
At 31 December 2008 ~ RZ=ZZT/\G+=ZA=1—H 42,434 5,665 1,405 49,504
Provided for the year INEERBE 1,168 5,665 79 6,912
At 31 December 2009 R-_ZEZEHNFE+-A=+-—H 43,602 11,330 1,484 56,416
CARRYING VALUES BEEEE
At 31 December2009 R-ZBEZHhE+=-H=+—H - 11,331 86 11,417
At 31 December 2008 ~H=ZTZT/\G+=-A=1+—8 1,168 16,996 143 18,307
Development expenditure, technical know-how and trademarks BRXE - BRMEXNBREENEREE
are amortised on a straight-line basis over 4 years. i - EEHEAR I -
19. Available-for-Sale Investments 19. AIHEERE
2009 2008
—EENEF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FH&T
Unlisted equity shares, at cost JE eI (R A E) 10,500 10,500
Less: Impairment loss recognised B BERERREEE (10,500) (5,250)
- 5,250
The investments represent the unlisted equity shares issued ZIREE—RAARLABBEITHIE LM
by private entity in Japan. The investments stated at cost less & o ARHEEGEAFEZHETEERKN - A
impairment at the end of the reporting period because the NAIBEERF/EATETEEAETE - BHRK
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the HEHREKABRBEAR °

directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair value
cannot be measured reliably.

The directors have assessed the expected future cash flows to —ZEENF+_A=+—RH  EFELTE
be generated and impairment loss was fully provided against its TE,HHH@F E7ARRReRE  BEEREREEE
carrying amount as at 31 December 2009. BHEHRREEERERE
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R I ERAR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-_ZTZhE+_A=+—RALEE

20. Inventories

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

21. Loans Receivable

Fixed-rate loans receivable
— At contemporary lending rate quoted
by the People’s Bank of China
(Note 1)
— At 4% (Note 2)
Interest-free loans receivable (Note 3)

Less: allowance for loans receivable
(Note 4)

Aging of loans receivables which are past due but not impaired:

Within 60 days
Over 1 year

076

20. F&
2009
—EENE
HK$’000
FHT
AT 165,981
EEL 403,455
BIpE 123,434
692,870
21. BRER
2009
“EENE
HK$’000
FHT
ERBEWE R
— B A RIRITRTR < FIHA

BRI a (HEET)
17,045
— LR RA4%t (BFE2) -
% BREWE R (HiFE3) 24,762
41,807

B FEUE SR EHE (FinE4)
(24,762)
17,045

2009
—EZhEF

HK$’000

FET

BOKRLAR -
—EB 17,045

17,045

Truly International Holdings Limited

ERHERREZ BKRER

2008
—ET)\F
HK$'000
TAT
202,230

322,320
183,794

708,344

2008
ZETT)\F
HK$’000
TAT

22,727
5,990
24,762

53,479

53,479

FRECDATANT -

2008
—ETN\F
HK$’000
TAT
33,932

33,932
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e M mRMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-_ZTZhE+_A=+—RALEE

21. Loans Receivable (continued)

Notes:

1.

22. Trade and Other Receivables 22,
Trade receivables FEUSAR TR
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W REREHE
Other receivables, deposits and M EWIE « Ea MTERNFIE

Total trade and other receivables

The amount is unsecured and will be repayable within one year
from the date when the loan agreement was entered into. The
loan was fully repaid subsequent to the year ended 31 December
20009.

The amounts were unsecured, bears fixed interest rate of 4% per
annum and repayable within one year when the loan agreement
was entered into. The loan was fully repaid during the year.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and are expected to be
received within one year when the loan agreement was entered
into.

During the year, the directors reviewed the carrying values of the
loans receivable. The recoverable amount of the receivables is
estimated by the directors based on the expected future cash
flow repaid from these receivables. As at 31 December 2009,
allowance for loans receivable of HK$24,762,000 (31 December
2008: nil) had been recognised.

prepayments

Included in the other receivables are purchase discounts from
suppliers with aggregate carrying amount of HK$142,942,000
(2008: nil) and temporary payment to PRC tax authority
amounting to HK$24,857,000 (2008: nil).

EFERERAE

—ETREFR

21. BEWER»®)

)
=
i

=

& WS AR TR LA P W R TR AR R

ZARBEER RARER G E L A —
FARAKE - ZRERERNBE_TTNEF L+
A=t—HLLEER2HEE

ZAHAREER - RETEFNEI%FEAEA
RERBHF Z AR —FARD - ZEHE
RERNBEEE

ZHIBREER - RS BEBIRNERIGHER
S AR —FAUE -

FR - EECEMEKERNEDE -EF
RIEEEZERBRENEHEAREZRS
MEMTERFENTKRESE R=2TZ
hE+-A=+—8 CHEKEZER
524,762,000 T ( —EENF+_A=1+—
A:Z)-

FEE Wi B T8 % L At FE W AR TR

2009 2008
—EBAE  —FTEN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
832,638 610,918
(10,058) (6,745)
822,580 604,173
221,910 45,545
1,044,490 649,718

E b FEUR R IB N B R ARBREE A 142,942,000/8
TT(ZZEENF - ) ZRINEEEmRETZER
A) AR B A 754 B8 VB L < B8 524,857,000/ 7T (=

TTNF ) 2ERBAK -

077



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009

HEZ

22.

078

STNF+-A=+-BLFE
Trade and Other Receivables (continued)
The Group’s trade receivables that are denominated in

currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

Denominated in HK$ LA TTRHE
Denominated in Euro LABRTTEHE
Denominated in RMB UAREEHE

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 30
to 90 days to its trade customers. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables presented based on invoice date
at the end of the reporting period, net of allowance for doubtful
debts at the reporting date:

Within 60 days BOK AR
61 to 90 days 61E90K
More than 90 days 90K

Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed
the potential customer’s credit quality and defined credit rating
limits for each customer. Limits attributed to customers are
reviewed once a year. 79% (2008: 57 %) of the trade receivables
are neither past due nor impaired.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying a mount of HK$176,779,000 (2008:
HK$258,744,000) which are past due at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Truly International Holdings Limited

22.

FEUERIE R H A EW R IE ()

AEBNERAESEBERNEEEUINZEET
B2 FRUSRIASESIAT

2009 2008
—EENF —ET)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT
92,377 61,879
5,221 1,347
87,755 -

REBERTHESEFP N F0E0KRNFIHE
B8 - RBE R ZRUGRAE(RREPRRER
BHIZ5))BRRE B R OTIT

2009 2008
—EEAE  —FENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FB T
794,191 546,827
6,635 28,337
21,754 29,009
822,580 604,173

REMNEAHELA  AREGTEHEERP
ZEEERRHER TP ZEEFNARE - A
TEEPZEERBEFEE R - 79% (=%
I\ : 57%) 2 FRWPRIRIG AR BEA K RE

AEBECREREEBELEHRAREREEESR
176,779,000 T 2 BWERR (ZZEZNF ¢
258,744,000/ L) - ZERERREAE B
H AR ECEERUESKEHAZSE
R A PTIRE - B It 2N 5 B 30 4 1F L R B & 18
B o NEBEWENZSEGEE TR -

Annual Report 2009
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22. Trade and Other Receivables (continued) 22,

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not

impaired

Within 60 days
61 to 90 days
More than 90 days

Total

B0RAR
61£290K
90K E

#eER

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

Balance at beginning of the year

FHHEER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R I ERAR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-ZTAF+-_A=+—HIFE

FEUERIE R H A EW R IE ()

T

2009
—EEhE
HK$’000
FET
148,390

6,635
21,754

176,779

REBRENEE

2009
—EZhE
HK$’000
FET

6,745

Allowance for doubtful debts recognised B Rt EUKBEIBMER ~ RIEREE

on trade receivables

Amounts written off as uncollectible

Balance at end of the year

HEH A AT E 2 FRIR
FIRIERR

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate amounts provided
for the year of HK$3,332,000 (2008: HK$5,178,000) which the
debtors have financial difficulties in repaying the outstanding
amount. The Group does not hold any collateral over these

—ETREFH

3,332

(19)

10,058

€ 18 1B R R {E 2 B Wk BRI ARl 0 A 20

2008
—ET)\F
HK$'000
TAT
201,398

28,337
29,009

258,744

2008
—BENF
HK$000
TAT
9,150

5,178
(7,583)

6,745

A ER AREE R EERERHEM R
# - ARAEEZREBHREFANREESE
/3,332,000/8 T 2 B R ERKEE(ZTZ
N\ 1 5,178,000/ 7C) - NEBW ERZZ L

RIS B (T AEA -

balances.
23. Derivative Financial Instruments 23. fTHES@mIT A
Assets Liabilities
BE
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENE —EENF —EENE —TENF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET TR FET
Foreign currency forward HNEZRIIE 4

contracts - 2,752 1,043
Interest rate swaps ) 2= 45 HA - - 7,414 7,688
- 2,752 7,414 8,731
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R I ERAR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-ZTAF+-_A=+—HIFE

23. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continueq) 23. TTEERTI A
The derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value PTESRITAERRERARZATEFE - /T4£
at the end of the reporting period. The fair value of derivative CRMIEZAFEDZEINE 2 IGERR
financial instrument is estimated using discounted cash flow AR TR E A 2 FIsREAR R s B 2 F =& - A
analysis with reference to the market rate of foreign currency BITRREmESTHE
and/or interest rate at the reporting date for remaining duration
of the outstanding contracts.
()  Major terms of interest rate swap agreements as at 31 () AEEBHBER_ZTNFR_ZTTNF
December 2009 and 2008 are as follow: TZA=+—BZEEEHRAT
Notional amount Maturity Term
RREE EHIERBR R
HK$100,000,000 March 2011 From 3 months Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
100,000,000/ 7T —T——%F=H (“HIBOR”) to fixed rate of 2.39% per annum
F3E A BBRITRER S ([BERITRAZERFE]D)
= B FMZX2.39%
HK$100,000,000 March 2011 5.25% per annum minus 3.95%, subject to
100,000,000/ 7T —E——%F=H the adjustment to 3 months HIBOR
FF|HK525%53.95% + BIRIEIE A B BRITRZE
I EMEH TR
(i)  Major terms of foreign currency forward contracts as at M INEEMEOR-_FTNFT_A=1—
31 December 2008 are as follow: HZEZEHAT
Aggregate principal amount Maturity Term
REHEEE EHER 1R
US$12,000,000 January 2009 Sell Renminbi (‘RMB”) /buy United State dollar (“US$”)
12,000,000% 7T —TTNEFE—A at 6.630 to 6.643
726.630£6.6432 HMEHARB (AR BA
FEr([Z%ET))
US$12,000,000 January 2009 Sell US$/buy RMB at 6.762 to 6.7625
12,000,0003% 7T —ZETNF—H 16.762%6.7625 2 B HETT B AARK
24. Bank Balances and Cash 24, BITEFRRE
The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated in REENEREEERNEEEUIN BT
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant B2 RITEFRESFHINNAT

group entities are set out below:

Japanese Yen HK$ uUs$

H B IT EVr

HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000

FAT FAT FATT

As at 31 December 2009 R-ZEFThFE+_-_A=+—H 1 50,159 17,093

As at 31 December 2008 R_ZEENEFE+_HA=1+—H 14 26,392 138
Bank balances carry interest at variable rates which ranged RITHEFENT0.01%ZE021% (=TT )\ F ¢

from 0.01% to 0.21% (2008: 0.01% to 3.6%) per annum. 0.01%%E3.6%) 2 ) BN FEFZEET B, o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R M I ERAR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-ZTAF+-_A=+—HIFE

25. Trade and Other Payables 25, FEfJERIE R HAFE(TFRIE
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented RB|ERRIZEZ A2 2 B RIBERE D
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: M
2009 2008
—EENF e AN
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FH&T
Within 60 days BORIARA 372,472 283,500
61 to 90 days 61E90K 164,608 130,837
More than 90 days 90X A £ 90,464 376,992
627,544 791,329
The average credit period on purchases of goods ranges HEEMHTHEEHRNTTE0EI0KX - A5H
from 60 to 90 days. The Group has financial risk management HIEBBEE 2 BRARERBE - UBRNME
policies in place to ensure that all payables are within the credit SN TPTA B 508 -
timeframe.
The Group’s trade and other payables that are denominated in AEENEREEERNGEEE N BT
currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant group B2 FERTERIE R A A E R RIBE ST

entities are set out below:

2009 2008

—EZhEF —FEN\F

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

FET F&T

Denominated in HK$ LA TTETAE 178,910 142,221
Denominated in Japanese Yen LAB EFHE 138,526 352,966
Denominated in Euro LA TTRHE 37 37

26. Bank and Other Borrowings, Unsecured 26. RITRHEMMEE  SIKH

2009 2008

—EZhE —FTN\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

T FAT

Bank loans RITEE 1,373,862 1,744,414
Trust receipt loans EFEBIEE R 635,290 333,795
Other loans HAEN 28,918 34,410
2,038,070 2,112,619

EAERERAT —ZZNFFR 081



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R I ERAR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-ZTAF+-_A=+—HIFE

26. Bank and Other Borrowings, Unsecured

(Continued)

The Group’s bank and other borrowings that are denominated
in currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant

group entities are set out below:

Denominated in HK$
Denominated in Japanese Yen

A TTEHE
AR EFHE

The maturity profile of the bank and other borrowings is as

follows:

On demand or within one year

More than one year, but not exceeding
two years

More than two years, but not exceeding
five years

Less: Amount due within one year
shown under current liabilities

Amount due after one year

RESR N —FA
—FRERMFA

MEREREFA

26.

MITREMIER -

|IKH )

AEBUEREBERINGEEEIUINZEET
BZRITREMEERSIT

W ﬂmmﬁﬁﬁ$z FA

2P /e!

—F R FIBFIR

082

All the Group’s borrowings are variable-rate borrowings which
carry interest at HIBOR or London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”) plus certain basis points. Interest is repricing every
three months and the range of effective interest rates is from
1.02% to 2.90% (2008: 1.31% to 5.85%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had bank and other
borrowings of HK$2,038,070,000, of which HK$1,308,908,000
were in breach of covenants and accordingly, an aggregate
amount of HK$366,792,000 with maturity date over one
year was presented as current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Truly International Holdings Limited

2009 2008
—2BAFE  —FENE
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt THT
1,140,699 1,817,633
76,233 85,860
BITRAMAEE 2 BIBR AR
2009 2008
—2BAE  —TENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt THT
1,963,286 1,992,050
48,316 53,841
26,468 66,728
2,038,070 2,112,619
(1,963,286) (1,992,050)
74,784 120,569
ARERABEORZOMEE - RREBRIT

BEEFEXGBERITRERE ([RBRITRE
FENDMETESE - FEBE=@AEE -
BERMRZEFEBRNT1.02%E2.90%(—ZF=
N 1.831%E5.85%) °

RZZFZANF+=_A=+—8 TEEZR
TREME ‘§7%203807oooo,%71: CH A
1,308,908,000 8 L iE R R4 - AW BEA
366,792,000/8 7T 2 | #A B 838 — & 2 SRIARER
BHBRAREINBRBBE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R I ERAR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009

Bz

ZEENFF A=+ —HILFE

27. Deferred Tax Liabilities

EAEBRERAF

27. EEFHIEEE

For the purpose of presenting in the consolidated statement of BRGEMBIRAKRP RS - P HE2RMS
financial position, the following is the analysis of the deferred tax ZIBETIBAEERDATIAT
balances for financial reporting purposes:
2009 2008
—EEhEF ZZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THET
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIBAE 34,897 29,136
Deferred tax assets FIETRIEE = (8,225) (754)
26,672 28,382
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) ERFERZAFEANERNEZRIENRIAER
recognised and movements thereon during the current and B(EE) REZFHNAT
prior years:
Allowance for
Accelerated receivables Undistributed
and profits of
depreciation inventories  subsidiaries Total
PEWRE R 2 =
MEBEFTE REERE KRAERER k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT FHIT FHT
At 1 January 2008 R-ZE\F—A—H 34,081 (800) - 33,281
(Credit) charge to profit REEBRH(HER)
or loss for the year L (3,024) 40 - (2,984)
Effect of change in tax rate MEEEHF (1,921) 6 - (1,915)
At 31 December 2008 RZZZN\F
T-H=+—H 29,136 (754) - 28,382
Credit to profit or loss REEBRHPEE
for the year (4,239) (7,471) 10,000 (1,710)
At 31 December 2009 RZTTNF
+=—RA=+—8H 24,897 (8,225) 10,000 26,672

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$55,399,000 (2008: HK$37,014,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Unrecognised tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

The Group has no significant unrecognised temporary

differences on undistributed profits of its subsidiaries at the end
of the reporting period.

—ETREFH

3R & B R K%lzxéb%ﬁﬁ&@ﬂ%
55,399,000/ 7T ( ZZ Z )\ : 37,014,000/
J0) Al FYEHK SR s A o AR AR BB AT AR 2R
FR - AW ER S S IERRECHIEE
B o RMERZ ISR ] ER AL o

RS BAR - AN B A RIR 9 Bl I &
éﬁﬂiﬁgwu EIH_I;E%E °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R I ERAR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-ZTNF+-_A=+—HIFE

28. Share Capital

28.

Number of shares

&
2009
—EENE
Ordinary shares of BEE0ETT
HK$0.1 each 2L
Authorised: SETE
At 1 January and R—A—AK
31 December +-—A=+—8 650,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRARC
At 1 January R—H—H 472,879,527
Exercise of share options Gl 60,000
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 472,939,527
Details of the exercise of share options are set out in note 34.
29. Capital Risk Management 29.

084

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 26 (net of cash and
cash equivalents) and equity, comprising issued share capital,
share premium and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As a part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associates with each class
of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends and new share issues as well
as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

Truly International Holdings Limited

V€S
Share capital
(&N
2008 2009 2008
—ET)N\F —EENEF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TR
650,000,000 65,000 65,000
472,744,527 47,288 47,274
135,000 6 14
472,879,527 47,294 47,288
TR 2 S IBE NI 5E34 o
EXREREE

oA 58 T 47 DA BB (R 7 5 P ) 8 B
SEEE - ABERE(CEREESTEAR
RERBALR - AEE QEERE F—F
BARFTE -

REEOBEARRBHERFER (B 26T
BofEE  KNGReMRSEEER) MEE
(BREEETBRA - BROGEE RFHE)EK -

ARPEETHEESEERRER - (ERERHW
— B EFEBEAKAREASEREARE
ZER - ARERSEBMNERE - #TH
Mty - BITHERBERRGEBIA T E AR
BARE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e M EmR MR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-ZTNF+-_A=+—HIFE

30. Financial Instruments 30. €T H

a. Categories of financial instruments a. SBMIAESHE
2009 2008
—EEAFE  —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
TR FAT
Financial assets SREE

Loan and receivable (including

cash and cash equivalents) MRS EEER)
Available-for-sale investments AHEHERE
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmTA
Financial liabilities S@Aas
Amortised cost IR
Derivative financial instruments PTEemTA

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank
balances and cash, loans receivable, derivative financial
instruments, available-for-sale investments, bank and
other borrowings, trade and other receivables and trade
and other payables. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes.

The management monitors and manages the financial
risk relating to the Group through internal risk assessment
which analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of
risks. The risks include market risk (including currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

EAERERAT —ZZNFFR

ER R EUGR(BERE

1,507,822 1,349,801
- 5,250

- 2,752

1,507,822 1,357,803
2,896,333 3,022,617
7,414 8,731

2,903,747 3,031,348

TREMEERERBE

FAEEZFZeRMITARBERITETRIR
T BEER TTESRTA  AIHEE
RE - ROTREMEER - BURERBAREAM
RS ER TR LA T R A PR TR e EL At FE S R0R
SR TAZFBENZAM L REE -

EIEE B BARERHE DT ER N ERE
BENRZERE  tMERNEEEAS
EERENRAR - ZERREEm S
2(BREERR  FXERREAMER
Rk - FERRERBE SRR o BE
ZERBOBRENTX - ERESEE
NMEFZERR - ARERLE AR E i
R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R I ERAR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-ZTNF+-_A=+—HIFE

30. Financial Instruments (Continued)

b.

086

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk

U

Currency risk

The Group undertakes certain transactions
denominated in foreign currencies which are
different from United States dollar and Renminbi, the
functional currency of the respective subsidiaries.
In order to reduce the risk associated with currency
fluctuation, the Group has entered into foreign
currency forward contracts in prior year and are set
out in note 23.

The carrying amounts of foreign currency risk arising
from foreign currency denominated monetary assets
and monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:

30. €T B

b. 2REREEEZERBE#E)
5%

() E¥ERRE
REBZETRBUINEE - %
ZINERIBANEB AR EE
(ETRARB)INER o Bk
RE®RBEBARERE - NEERB
TEREERIINERHEH - FE

S8
REER - AINEIIEZ EHEE
REBaBES ZINERRE 2 BRE

BT :
Liabilities Assets
88 BE

2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEhE —TENF —EENF —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET TAET FHERT FAET
Hong Kong dollar BTt 1,327,023 1,967,542 142,536 88,271
Japanese Yen H 214,759 438,826 1 5,264
Euro BT 37 37 5,221 1,347
RMB ARE - - 87,755 -

The Group continuously assesses and monitors
the exposure to foreign exchange risk. The
management will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the change in the
Group’s profit before tax for the year in response
to reasonably possible change in the functional
currency i.e. United States dollar to the relevant
currencies of which the Group have significant
exposure at the reporting date.

Truly International Holdings Limited

AEE R BN REEINERR
EEESNARERERE MEK
SNERER

BREAHT

FRETHANEIE(NET) X
BAREN R R A AL EARRZ
MRS TR AR -
BHCRSR AT BB AT T
288 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R I ERAR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-ZTNF+-_A=+—HIFE

30. Financial Instruments (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b.

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Hong Kong dollar BT
Japanese Yen H
RMB AR
Euro BT

30. €T B

EREAREERRREK2Z)

5% B8 (&)

) E¥RRE)

BURRE DT (8)
2009 2008
—EENF “TTNF
United United

States dollar Increase  States dollar Increase
strengthen (decrease) strengthen (decrease)
(weaken) in profit (weaken) in profit
En Pl X7 il
HEEE)  EmoEd)  AEEE) EnCEd)
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
1% 10,966 1% 18,793
(1%) (10,966) (1%) (18,799)
5% 10,738 5% 21,678
(5%) (10,738) (5%) (21,678)
1% 877 1% =
(1%) (877) (1%) =
1% (52) 1% (13)
(1%) 52 (1%) 18

EFERERAE

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates
had occurred at the reporting date and had been
applied to each of the group entities’ exposure to
currency risk for non-derivative financial instruments
in existence at that date, and that all other variable
remain constant.

The stated changes represent the management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rate over the period until the
end of the next reporting period. Results of the
analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the effects on each of the group
entities’ profit or loss measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong
dollar at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2008.

—ETREFH

BREE ST 2 B B SMEE R
SHRB/EADHAE - ABSEA
REEEEBRZA DR AL
SRMIAHMAEZ BEAR - T
ARMBRERTE -

FASESHREREHEET —HE
HIR IE BRSNS EE R ae B IR 2 &
BEBNFE o EREBRZAONHE
RR/TEERBERBUS YRS
RTEZIERMRTEZRE A
AERER 2 ERGERET
E2FAE - ZAMHREER—F
TNFHRZ EEEHETT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R I ERAR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-ZTNF+-_A=+—HIFE

30. Financial Instruments (Continueq) 30. e@MT A
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. SREREEEERBE#)
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) s Efe (&)
()  Currency risk (Continued) () EERgE)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the currency risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

The sensitivity analyses below show the exposure to
change in forward exchange rate on the derivative
financial instruments assets/liabilities. Sensitivity
rate of 5% (2008: 5%) represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
forward exchange rate.

Increase (decrease) in profit for the year

— as a result of increase in forward — iR HAfE R 7t
exchange rate
— as a result of decrease in forward — i HAPE R Tk

exchange rate

(i) Interest rate risk (i

(@ Non-derivative financial assets and financial
liabilities

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank balances and
variable-rate bank and other borrowings (see
notes 24 and 26 for details). The Group is
also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate loans receivable.

HRE A (E)

EEERS  ARFRZERARGE
REREEFE 2 Ak - ElsRE
DT TRERKATAER 2 G R -

NTBRESMBRTESR T A
LE/aERPERES AR
HEERE5%(ZTE)\F : 5%)
REEEBYHRIERTEHIRA
BEEEH 2 7S -

AEZEAMEN, R D)

2009 2008
—BBAE  ZTEN\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tl i

- (298)

- 298

AR

(@)

HTEERMEERERARE

AEBAAZER S RENE
[R\fe - Rz R TD R B ERTT A4S
7 RF BRITEEAREAM
BE(FIE2RAME24%26)
BTG ERER - KE
B AREE B EWERE
ZAHEN R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R I ERAR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-ZTNF+-_A=+—HIFE

30. Financial Instruments (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(@  Non-derivative financial assets and financial
liabilities (Continued)

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity
risk management section of this note. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR
and LIBOR arising from the Group’s Hong
Kong dollar denominated borrowings. The
management considers the exposure to
interest rate risk in relation to bank balances
is insignificant due to the low level of deposit
interest rate.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank borrowings. The
analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of asset and liability outstanding at the end
of the reporting period was existed for the
whole year. A 100 basis point (2008: 100
basis point) increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
ended 31 December 2009 would decrease/
increase by HK$20,381,000 (2008: decrease/
increase by HK$21,131,000).

EFAERERAT —EENFFR

30. €T B

b.

EREAREERRREK2Z)

5% B8 (&)

(i)

R e (48 )

(@)

FITEERMEEREMBE
(#8)

AEERESRABMAE
MR @B 2 FEIE BN A KT 5
mBETEBRERE & o K
KEZRSREFERRARK
BASBENETIEZE
& XTEEFRBFBRTRE
EHRBERBBRITAERE
ZEE) o i IME BRI RIKF
BIE - ARERERRRIT
‘EZHERMNRRRYTE
X o

BURE DT

AT SRR E 9 47 Th IR R F
BHRITEE M ER B M
BT - O MBRERRE
HARABEEERAEER
&2 FIBR 2 F RNIFE M4
gl AXTBEIR A B ANER
& F = R R T 1008, F
(ZZEZEN\F  10027) 2
msm s  RREZEEYF
KA HIRA BEIEL ~
B -

W7 = _EFATE10026F
mATE MBS HHTE
REBREE-_ZTZTHhE
+-A=+—RALEEZH
FI A1k 4> 3 hn20,381,000
BIL(ZTTNEF g i
Hn21,131,000%7¢) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R I ERAR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-ZTNF+-_A=+—HIFE

30. Financial Instruments (Continued)

b.

090

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(b)  Derivative financial assets and liabilities

During the year, the Group entered into
several interest rate swap contracts. These
derivatives are not accounted for under hedge
accounting. The Group is required to estimate
the fair value of the interest rate swap
contracts at the end of the reporting period,
which therefore exposed the Group to interest
rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

If forward interest rates had been 100 basis
points (2008: 100 basis points) higher/lower
and all other variable were held constant,
the Group’s profit for the year ended 31
December 2009 would decrease/increase by
HK$1,993,000 (2008:HK$1,845,000).

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the interest rate
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect
the exposure during the year.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Other than loans receivable as disclosed in note 21,
the Group does not have significant concentration of
credit risk as trade receivables consist of a large number
of customers, spread across diverse industries and
geographical areas.

30. €T B

EREAREERRREK2Z)

5% B8 (&)

(i)  FEERERE)

(b)

=EERE

AREBREANRTLE T HI=X
EHAH ZREMETAY
BEA PG HEAR - K&
B 780 s B R fh a A K42
HeamzAFE BAmMER
7 5= (88 e e ) o L g

BURE DT

HEBAE FF 100
BF(ZZFZNF 100 %
F) MATEHMEBESES
"B AREBREE-F
ZEANF+-_A=+—A81
FE 2z B A 1840
1,993,000 7L (Z T ZE N
£F 1 1,845,000/87T) °

EEERR  ARFERZE
B oK BE IR BR B B F E 2 Bl
& - Bl BURRE DT T RER
RETER 2 FRER

RZZFTZNF+_A=1t—RH  xEEEH
HFEFAREBITHEEMEBAER LR
BBERZ EERR LR - REESHER
EREENFAMBARKRAI ZRE

& -

BRBTEE21 TR EE 2 BIRE KON - AR A
SEEWRIES R RZTER T AR Z
REXP  RUAEETEBOER 2(F

B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R I ERAR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-ZTNF+-_A=+—HIFE

30. Financial Instruments (Continued)

b.

EFERERAE

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual receivable at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.

With respect to credit risk arising from the loans
receivable, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each loan receivable at the end of each reporting
period and allowance for loans receivable are made.
The management of the Company considers that the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from default of the
receivable is limited as the party is PRC local government
authority and partial settlement was noted during the year.
The Group manages its credit risk by closely monitoring
and follow up action has been taken to recover the
overdue loans receivable.

Liquidity risk

Although the Group had net current liabilities at the end of
the reporting period, the Group monitors its current and
expected liquidity requirements regularly and ensuring
sufficient liquid cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from reputable financial institutions are available
to meet the Group’s liquidity requirements in the short
and long term.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2009, the
Group has available banking facilities of approximately
HK$1,620,677,000 (2008: HK$903,242,000). Details of
bank and other borrowings are set out in note 26.

—EENEFR

30. €T B

b.

EREAREERRREK2Z)

=Em R (&)

REEERRAERE  AREERED
ZREREGETEELR - FEHER
HbEEREfF - PAREGRREURETTEIRE
BHEMETR o AN AEEENEHRER
EHRERBFIRZ WO S - R
X SRR ARERE - Bt
5 ARREEFAR/AEBZEERRE
RIBFERAE

RBEEZEERRER  TERARYTF
TEREBSEZRIT -

HRERERELZ EERRME @ AEE
REREPRREHZEEER 2 TR D E
BN EREL 2 Bl - AAREE
ERSHNEEETT AT EMTT BT
B AEBEPRIEZ ZERUGRIRENE
EZEERBRAER - MEbs BEFIBER
FREE - ARBEEREVERERARE
B - WHRERRAETTEN AU B H Uk

B -
B AR

BEAEERMEHRRE DA T
8 EAEEE R R RERRE
BB LRRBERTZABESR
EEEBSESMBEY EAGES
B R AEEOEERERASES
= o

RNEEFRIBITEEEARBDES ZE
ZRRE - -R_FEZENFF+_RAR=+—
H AEEAUHAZEBOTEEEED
£ 1,620,677,0008 L (ZF & J\F -
903,242,000 7T ) - RITEE R H M &
B2 58RI 526 -
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30. Financial Instruments (Continued)

092

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

As at 31 December, 2009, The Group had bank
and other borrowings of HK$2,038,070,000 (2008:
HK$2,112,619,000), of which HK$1,308,908,000 (2008:
HK$1,812,036,000) were in breach of covenants and the
banks have the right to demand for immediate payment.
Subsequent to end of the reporting periods, the Group
has obtained written consent from certain banks which
confirmed that they have agreed to waive the right to
demand for immediate repayment of the loan balances of
HK$666,055,000 (HK$1,663,079,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on
the agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flow. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted
contractual net cash outflows on derivative instruments
that settle on a net basis.

When the amount payable is not fixed since the balances
are denominated in currencies other than functional
currencies of the relevant group entity, the amount
disclosed has been determined by reference to the
foreign currency exchange rate at the end of the reporting
period.

Truly International Holdings Limited

30. €T B

b.

EREAREERRREK2Z)

RBE TR (E)

REBTBASERS  AEEREER
BRERERASSEENNEEER AR
KT - LAAEE SERUASR
RERSHERBZHE -

R-EBEZAFE+_A=+—8 K&EH
WA RTT R E b & E2,038,070,0007% 7T
(ZZTZN\F :2,112,619,000/8 7T ) °
H 711,308,908,000/ 8 L (ZFF )\ F -
1,812,036,000/8 7T )& [ T 22 AV EK - R
TEREERAIREEZERE - RREH
% AEERESETRITIBELEZAE
£ BRESEREREZRANEER
X 4517 666,055,000 7T (1,663,079,000
PBIT) 2R o

TRAMAZIIAEEEBMBEERTHE
EVERIGR RS OFH - ZRBEA
SEARERERER KT ARSRARE
ZATHRREREMBE - ZREFENE
RAGHERE ° WA ERERAFEF]
FHE - ARITR SR RIBRENRZ
FEEH -

AN - TRFIANEERETESRT A
FERREVE SN © TRIMRIBEFZIA
FREENTTET R Z AHARITRBR SR
HFREMmARE

i BT DA SR B 4 2 D B S L
SMEMEHE - T HUEH £ 88 1 3
T - ARG S EDSRREE HA 25}
EELET -
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30. Financial Instruments (Continued)

b.

EFERERAE

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

2009

Non-derivative instruments

Trade and other payables

Variable interest rate bank and
other borrowings

Derivative instruments
- net settlement
Interest rate swap
- net cash outfiows

2008

Non-derivative instruments

Trade and other payables

Viariable interest rate bank and
other borrowings

Derivative instruments
- net settlement
Foreign exchange forward
contracts - outfow
Interest rate swap
- ngt cash outfiows

S
FHEIR
EMBRERAERE
EERNEERAMES

e T8 RFELE

RS- BeRHTE

“EI)E
HEIR
ENFRERAER R
FEREERAMEE

e T8 RFELE
ERNER R

HERA-RATLEE

—ETREFH

Weighted
average
effective

interest rate

E¥s
BRA=

%

196

0to3
months

%=
e
HKS 000
Fi7

858,263

1,875,94

2,734,204

1,801

909,472

2,075,624

2,985,096

1,043

1,006

2,048

4-6
months

mE
AR
HKS000
Tén

52,019

52,019

1,801

1,005

1,005

7-12
months

tE
+=8A
HKS 000
TR

45,520

45,520

3,601

2671

2611

30. €T B

EREAREERREREK2)

RBE TR (E)

1-2year

-5k
HKS 000
Thr

48,619

48,619

7,208

42629

42,629

4022

4022

2-3years

mE=F
HK$ 000
Thn

26,924

26,924

1,801

41,708

41,708

201

2,01

3-5years

ZERf
HK$'000
T#m

20,064

20,064

Total
undiscounted
cash flows
ER ]
k¥ |
]
HK§'000
Tin

858,263

2,049,023

2,907,286

16,207

909,472

215,500

3124912

1043

10,054

11,097

Carrying
amount
atdt
December
=R
ST
ZEEE
HK§ 000
Thn

858,263

2,038,070

2,896,333

144

909,472

2113145

3,022,617

1,043

7,688

8,731
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30. Financial Instruments (Continued)

094

C.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative financial instrument) are determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is
estimated using discounted cash flow analysis with
reference to market rate of foreign currency and/or
interest rate at the reporting date for remaining duration of
the outstanding contracts.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate to their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

° Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

Derivative financial
instruments

TEERMT A

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the
current year.

Truly International Holdings Limited

30. €T B

Level 1
1R
HK$°000
THT

C.

ATE

EREERERABB(TEETESRT
B)ZRAHEDRBEEBEX 2 EERN
ENRBASRENNEE

TEERMTAZ AFETIZERTRAH
ZRIRERIRRE B 2 TISEE R H
o RAFRRERED WAt

EERRIB NI NREMERER 2
ERMEERERABZRAERLNTE
EE=I

REG A BRI T B8

TRERNZURHEERZAEZ SR
TEDH  ERABEQFEREEDS ST
23, -

s FBIRAFEAENACRHMNEE
KA BERIERT S AAREECK
HE)FH -

o FABAFEFEIIREIRAZ
BEIN  BEEXAEAER (B
ER)SRE(BERITLE)BEESR
ABIESH -

o EIRATEFENFALIFRIE
AEET S EE(BEERE AR
BIZEERABZAETES

2009
—EEAF
Level 2 Level 3 Total
28R E3W #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TBT THT T
7,414 - 7,414

RAEE » F1F R B4 2 I e -
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31. Additional Interest in a Subsidiary 31. RMIBE AR Z LR
In prior year, the Group further acquired 44% of the issued EE - ANEEE—FHWHETruly Semiconductors
share capital of Truly Semiconductors (Korea) Ltd., which is (Korea) Ltd. ([R BAREBE 2Bt & A R]) 244%E
originally an associate of the Group, for a consideration of BT - R{B 497,000 T °
HK$497,000.
This acquisition had been accounted for using the purchase ZWEE TR AYRESEANR - BWEESERDE -
method. There was no goodwill arising as a result of the
acquisition.
The carrying amount and fair value of net assets acquired in the ZRXGFRIE 2 FEEZREE R A AR
transaction were as follows: T
HK$’000
THT
Net assets acquired: P 2 &
Property, plant and equipment Y - B REAE 113
Inventories T8 254
Trade and other receivables JE BRI % L th FE LR SR IR 839
Bank balances and cash WITEERRE 173
Trade and other payable FEASTBRIE I ELAth FE T 5RIE (443)
Net assets acquired P 2 S EE 936
Less: Minority interest W BRI R (48)
888
Total consideration satisfied by: BREATHIE AT
Interest in an associate REE N T 2 s 391
Cash Re 497
888
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEgEE 2 IRE Rt FE
Cash consideration paid BEfRERE (497)
Bank balances and cash acquired Frus g 2 SR7T 4517 RIR & 173
(324)
The subsidiary acquired did not have any material impact on the Rl 2 B AR EEAER 2 FFEER
Group’s results for prior year. EEEATE -

EFAERERAT —EENFFR 095
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32. Operating Lease Commitments
The Group as lessee

At the reporting date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

—FR

Within one year
In the second to third years inclusive

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises and other equipment.
Leases are negotiated for a term ranging from two to three
years with fixed rentals.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$5,767,000 (2008: HK$5,065,000), which was derived from
letting of staff quarters included in the Group’s property, plant
and equipment.

At the reporting date, the Group had contracted with tenants
for the following future minimum lease payments:

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

096

F_FEF=F(BHEEMF)

F_FEFAF(BREEMF)

Truly International Holdings Limited

32, REFHLALE
AEBEERABA

RBEH » NEBRBETARELLHORT
I RARR B B 2 R RS ARFH A FASET -

2009 2008
—gBhE  ZEENE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT i
3,441 4,699
2,087 888
5,528 5,587

REBONFTEAEEREETHAEDER
HibREMENZEHE - EEHRARE=
FoXWABEERE °

AEEESEEA

AFEERIRZ HERS WA ES5,767,0007% T
(ZZZ )\ : 5,065,000/67C) * ZZEHLWA
RREALHFAREEYE BEREZEZE
TEE °

MBS R - AEEE TSR RRIER R
BT AK -
2009 2008
—EBhE  ZTENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT Tt
716 1,818
2,148 3,550
2,864 5,368
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For the year ended 31 December 2009
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33. Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for but
not provided in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of
acquisition of plant and equipment

Capital expenditure authorised but not
contracted for in respect of acquisition
of plant and equipment

34. Share Option Schemes

33. BEAEE
2009 2008
—EENE  —EENGF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
S ERE LREEN
(BRI S BTHRED RS
ZEARTH
40,838 56,246
RBERERRECETE
BRETHZ EAKH
360,000 120,000

34. BRESTE

Pursuant to resolutions passed at an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company on 22 December 2003, the Company
has terminated a share option scheme which was adopted on

BREARRNR_ZT=FF+_A_F+_HET

ZBRREINAGBBIRER  ARFDKLE
R-ZET—FRA -+ - ARNZERIE S

22 May 2001 (the “Old Scheme”) and adopted a new share (TEEE]) - W — B EARREST 2 ([ 5t

option scheme (the “New Scheme”) . )

(i) Old Scheme (i) E:taE
The purpose of the Old Scheme is to motivate employees B ESRAEEZES WERSE
of the Group and to allow them to participate in the SHENNRZEE o BIBEEIA FIFH
growth of the Company. The maximum number of shares ZEBRIEFTS R Z RO B E  &Re 58
in respect of which options may be granted under the WBARDNE) TR BITIRAE10% o A%
Old Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the share FAERMERIA T2 BERRRERT 3 & 2 R 15 8k
capital of the Company in issue from time to time. The B o M EHRAERIEEREZID T
maximum number of shares in respect of which options KRBT 7 R HA B HI25% o (T iRIEE
may be granted to any individual is not permitted to STEHGTE R PTE RS IRHE 2 2B E AN
exceed 25% of the aggregate number of shares for the B ER TREEE HET0HRARUAR
time being issued and issuable under the Old Scheme. BERMAR T X 1.00/487T °
Any participants who accepts an offer of the grant
of an option in accordance with the terms of the Old
Scheme shall pay to the Company HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof within a period of 30
days from the date on which an option is offered to the
participant.
At 31 December 2009, the number of shares in respect of N-_EZENE+-_A=+—H ' ExtZ2|1\
which options had been granted previously and remained TRBE BB LB MR T ARIEFT S &
outstanding under the Old Scheme was 345,000 (2008: 215 & B A&345,0000 ( == N\ :
405,000), representing approximately 0.1% (2008: 0.1%) 405,0008%) * (AR BB BEITIRA B
of total issued share capital of the Company. The options ZH0A%(ZZFZ)\F : 01%)  BRAE
are exercisable at any time until 21 May 2011. AN —E——FH A - +—HATZEAR

fRIATTHE °
EANERERAT —ETNFER 097
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34. Share Option Schemes (Continued) 34. BRETE2
The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share TEEREE(BEES)MSAARIEREZ
options held by the employees (including directors) and HEERAFER EFERNZEEREZZE
movements in such holdings during the current and prior year: 1B
Number of options
EREZE
Exercised Exercised
Outstanding during  Outstanding during  Outstanding
Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price  at 1.1.2008 theyear  at31.12.2008 theyear  at 31.12.2009
S “EENE “EENE
= S =8 t=h
-fA-H Er=E =t+-H
RS frEdE e HAOE FRITHE HR{TE FERITH AT
HK$
BT
Directors:
£
16 July 2001 17.7.2001 t0 21.5.2011 2.196 400,000 = 400,000 (60,000) 340,000
S RS ZEE-5tATtERAZE
+A+<A “Z—FRA=+-H
Employees:
E&:
16 July 2001 17.7.2001 t0 21.5.2011 2.196 140,000 (135,000) 5,000 - 5,000
S RS ZEE-5tATtERAZE
+A+<A “Z—FRA=+-H
540,000 (135,000 405,000 (60,000) 345,000
The average closing price of the Company’s share immediately RAR DA ERE B ARETE B B 2 AT RAT{E
before the date(s) on which the options were exercised and at ZBZFHWTEAES200B T(ZTEZENF :
dates of exercised is HK$8.20 (2008: HK$6.88). 6.88/87T) °
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34. Share Option Schemes (continued)

(i)

EFERERAE

New Scheme

The Company’s New Scheme was adopted for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to eligible persons
or rewarding for their contribution or potential contribution
to the Group and will expire on 21 December 20183.
Under the New Scheme, the Board of Directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible persons, including
(i) any director or proposed director, full-time employee
or proposed employee of any member of the Group or
controlling shareholder or any company controlled by a
controlling shareholder; (i) any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any controlling
shareholder or any company controlled by a controlling
shareholder; and (jii) any business or joint venture partner,
contractor, agent or representative of any supplier of
goods or services to or any customer or distributor of
goods or services of any member of the Group or any
controlling shareholder or a company controlled by a
controlling shareholder.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the New Scheme and the Old
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point
in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options granted to substantial shareholders
or independent non-executive directors in excess of 0.1%
of the Company'’s share capital and with a value in excess
of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be accepted within 21 days from
the date of option offer, upon payment of HK$1.00 per
option. Options may be exercised at any time from the
date of grant of the share option to the 10th anniversary
of the date of grant. The exercise price is determined
by the directors of the Company, and will not be less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant, (i) the average closing price
of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of
the Company’s share.

—EENEFR

34. BRETTE®)

(ii)

HarEl

KR8 EZRBEIEER AT
REVESHAEE 2 BRSOBTE BRI H
W TR —_E—=F+_A=-_+—HEF
W o BIBEFETE] - ARAREZSAH LB
EETFAEERALT  BIE)AEEEAK
BAA] « AR R SR AR B 2 (A
NRAIZEMESRERESE  2HESN
ERES  (\AEEEMKE AR - 2
A& SR SR AR SR ) 2 (A BB T 2 A
AIBEH 2 EMFA A - K4 & B E [
KB AR PR R SRR AR B ) 2 T
fAIREZ EAEBRE LR  ABHE -
RER - HAERIRBEEERE - E
AIEF EmRBDH -

RARERATRESARMAEZIBFTRAT 1B
BIarE R ERT IR TR 2 BARERTS
2B EE - TEBBARA TR
2 EEBETRMH10% o RAERRDTRE
HEIEZBERT - REF—FRREMA
BRIA L8] TR 2 BB AT S & 2 B D
HE  TEBBAAMEAREE T
BEAD 2 1% © [AE BRRR S B FEHITE
EREBBARRBRA01%LEBEBRS
5,000,000/ 7 2 IR MR R R E AR R
AR R AL -

B 2 R VB BB B 3 2 AT
21BN N B0 BIRE1.008TT 27
A - BRI R B A B H T
ERE AT BFEHARARERITE - 176
BERARBEEEE - ABTLRIAT
REE  (AARRMERL RS2 %S
& - ([iIRONEZR L AT AEZ XA
ZTHEWTE « Ry ANARRG 2 EE -
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34. Share Option Schemes (continued)

100

(i)

New Scheme (Continued)

At 31 December 2009, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted previously and remained
outstanding under the New Scheme was 56,475,000
(2008: 56,475,000), representing approximately 11.9%
(2008: 11.9%) of total issued share capital of the
Company. The options are exercisable at any time until
21 December 2013.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s
share options held by the employees (including directors):

34. BRETE &

Exercise
Date of grant Exercisable period price
REAH fTfEEA TfEE
HK$
BT
Directors:
-
26 February 2004 27.2.2004 t0 21.12.2013 11.6
“ZTWE-_A-+5~B —TEME-_A-t+HE
—Z—=F+ZfA=1+-H
15 June 2006 16.6.2006 to 21.12.2013 9.58
—EERFAATAR “ETRERATAAZE
—Z—=F+ZfA=1+-H
Employees:
B8
26 February 2004 27.2.2004 t0 21.12.2013 11.6
“ZEWNE-_A-+B Z—TEME-_A-t+HZE
ZT—=F+ZfA=1+-H
15 June 2006 16.6.2006 to 21.12.2013 9.58
“EERFAATARA “ETRERATAAZE
ZT—=F+ZfA=1+-H

Truly International Holdings Limited

(i) EtEl2)
RZZEZANF+ZA=+—8 ' RBREH
AERBAEERE RMARITEBRERR
Wz KD BB A56,475,000 % (=&
T N\F : 56,475,000/%) - (h AR AEE
BITIRAREZ H11.9%(ZZF )\ F :
11.9%) - BREAINR_ZE—=F+_H
—t+— BRI Z EAIRFEATTEE
TRERES(BRES)MSAARER
2B

Number of options
BREHE

Outstanding
at 1.1.2008 Exercised Outstanding
and during at
31.12.2008 the year 31.12.2009

RZBENF

—A-H

R=ZENF R-EZRE

+=A=+-A +=ZA=+-8
i RATHE FRTE i RATHE

17,350,000 - 17,350,000

9,000,000 - 9,000,000
26,350,000 - 26,350,000
25,625,000 - 25,625,000

4,500,000 - 4,500,000
30,125,000 - 30,125,000
56,475,000 - 56,475,000

Annual Report 2009
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35.

36.

37.

=7

Retirement Benefits Schemes

All the staff in Hong Kong of the Group is required to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. The Group is required to
contribute 5%, while the employees are required to contribute
5% of their salaries to the scheme to the extent of HK$1,000
for each employee.

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the salaries of their employees to the state-
managed retirement benefit scheme. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme.

Government Grants

At the end of the reporting period and included in trade and
other payable, the Group has received government grants
of HK$12,600,000 (2008: HK$12,453,000) to subsidise the
acquisition of property, plant and machinery for the scientific
research development. The amount has been treated as
deferred income and transferred to profit or loss over the useful
lives of the relevant assets. This policy has resulted in a credit
to profit or loss in the current year of HK$1,693,000 (2008:
HK$1,421,000).

Related Party Transactions

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year were as follows:

SRk
BERIZ AR A

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to
the performance of individuals and market trends.

BEERLE —ZEEAFFR

35.

36.

37.

R E

AEEZ2RBEBREEHAS NAGERTE
A8l - AEBAEHS%HN - MiEE AR
sHEEL EZBNs% 2 3k - BRIES ZHK

&
A
K ER
% 51,000/ 7T °

REFEBREERA - HEMNBARIZER
EREENRAENAEELBENEERE S
BE T Bt 2 3R - NEE B RKE NS
e 2 B EER R BIEL AR -

BT fEBY

FA MR A HA SR 30 71| A B < BR T8 I EL At R {5 3R 0E
NEBEERSAERBDE - BERESEUFE
RIT 2 R 2 B4 8h12,600,0008 7T ( —ZZ )\
F 1 12,453,000 7T)  ZEFHE AR AELEW
AR AR EE 2 FAF SR EIER - K
REHAFE T AIBm 2 £ 8 /41,693,000%8 T
(ZZZ)\F : 1,421,000/ 7T) °

BEALRS

AFEEENHMFEEEERE 2 H BN
T

2009 2008
—2BEAE  TENE
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt Tt
18,819 18,259

132 132

18,951 18,391

EENIETBRABZHEMOIOFHEESS
ZEAZRBRNTIZBBEETE -
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38. Event after the Reporting Period

38. HEHKRER

Subsequent to 31 December 2009, the Group has entered into
a placing agreement with an placing agent to issue 30,000,000
new ordinary shares of HK$8.1 each by cash. The gross
proceeds amounting to HK$243,000,000 will be used to repay
certain bank borrowings that are repayable within one year.

39. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the

Company

Name of subsidiary

HEARER

Truly Electronics Manufacturing Limited

EHEFBRAT

Truly Electrical Products Company

Limited
EHERBRAT

Truly Industrial Limited

EHIZBRAE

Truly Instrument Limited
EHESEBRAT

102

Truly Semiconductors (Korea) Ltd
(formerly known as Truly Instrument
Korea Company Limited)

Truly Semiconductors (Korea) Ltd (A&

Truly Instrument Korea Company Limited)

Truly Semiconductors Limited
ENFERARAT

Truly (USA) Inc.

Place of

incorporation or

registration/
operation

B
B/ EENY

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

South Korea

EE

Hong Kong

United States of
America
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—RERERIT —HESHR WERERRE
8.178 70,2 35178 %1730,000,000 A% T & 38 % o

1S FIALAEE243,000,000F TS ANMEEE T

paid ordinary Proportion ownership
share capital/ interest held by
registered capital the Company
BERTRAR
ERRRA FARREZ
HE/EmEs FrE R =LAl
2009 2008
“2ENE CTRNE
HK$1,000,010 100% 100%
1,000,0107T
HK$200 100% 100%
20057T
HK$872,894 100% 100%
872,894757C
HK$100 100% 100%
100/87T
Korean won 94% 94%
250,000,000
250,000,000% 8
HK$1,000 100% 100%
1,000%7T
US$20,000 100% 100%
20,0007
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Principal activities

IERE

Trading of electronic
calculators
ETERES

Trading of motor
B

Trading of electronic
components
ETHES

Trading of electric
tooth brush
BHTHIES

Trading of electronic
consumer products
ETHEERES

Trading of LCD products
REBTREERE S

Marketing of electronic

calculators
BT EREES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e M EmR MR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-ZTNF+-_A=+—HIFE

39. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 39. XA TR T EMBATEER @)
Company (Continued)

Nominal value of

Place of issued and fully
incorporation or paid ordinary Proportion ownership
registration/ share capital/ interest held by
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
BRITRAR
ML EERRA KARBEZ
WEAREHE B/ EEhY Al FRER Jiig=t: 4 5534 TEER
2009 2008
“EEhE “EEN\F
EHNEFERAA " PRC US$38,964,115 100% 100%  Manufacture of electronic
H 38,964,155 7T calculators
BES TR EH
R FERER AR PRC 1US$498,300,000 100% 100%  Manufacture of LCD
i 498,300,000% T products
BRGNS ER
EHERCUE)BRAR - PRC US$1,000,000 100% 100% Manufacture of
H 1,000,000% 7 electric toothbrush
HEZH TR
EAXECLE)BRAR PRC US$1,168,137 100% 100%  Manufacture of electronic
H 1,168,137% 7T components
BUEETENH
EHNIZCLE)ERAR PRC HK$2,000,000 100% 100%  Inactive
H 2,000,000/ 7T i
ERBROLE)ERAR PRC US$35,750,000 100% 100%  Inactive
H 35,750,000 7T i
* wholly foreign owned enterprise * INSBERE
Except for Truly Electronics Manufacturing Limited and Truly BIEFIE T AR AR KETruly (USA) Inc.4h » FTE
(USA) Inc., all subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company. B ATHEAARIMEERE
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at R-ZZEENF+ A=+ B FREMAE
31 December 2009 or at any time during the year. - BB ARIEERKERE 2EBES

ERERERAT —BEhEFR 103



Financial Summary

MBERBE

Results 7

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=t—HLEE

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
ZZTHE ZETRF  ZETtF ZEEN\F CZTAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHIT TAT FHL FHL FExT
Revenue WA 4,574,079 4,523,826 6,493,394 5,669,274 5,804,184
Cost of sales HEMRAR (3,487,719)  (3,623,940)  (5,387,613)  (4,973,300)  (4,976,090)
Gross profit 5 1,086,360 899,886 1,105,781 695,974 828,094
Other income HAIA 27,438 79,125 85,669 86,476 25,587
Other gains and losses Hibigs - - - (45,053) (101,840)
Administrative expenses THE A (164,459) (178,062) (168,753) (190,902) (186,450)
Distribution and DERHERR
selling expenses (73,592) (113,666) (139,108) (140,422) (110,302)
Impairment losses HEBE (14,177) - - - -
Share of results of ER—FREEE A7
an associate L EE (382) (334) (445) = -
Finance costs HBER (19,683) (35,766) (57,821) (67,015) (46,643)
Profit before tax BTt Bl 841,505 651,183 825,323 339,058 408,446
Income tax expense FTis iz i (139,457) (119,137) (123,294) (77,923) (101,113)
Profit for the year REERF 702,048 532,046 702,029 261,135 307,333
Attributable to: AT AR
Equity holders of ARFIRE
the Company 702,048 532,046 702,029 261,121 307,333
Minority interest DERR R RS - - - 14 .
702,048 532,046 702,029 261,135 307,333
Assets and liabilities EEREE
At 31 December
W+=A=+-—H
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
“TTHFE CEEXF TTtHF —ETN\F CZBETAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
THT FHET FAT FAT FERT
Total assets BEBHE 3,428,180 4,094,541 5,902,044 6,560,209 6,659,801
Total liabilities BEEE (1,490,135)  (1,728,539)  (2,869,713)  (3,314,104)  (3,175,747)
Equity attributable to equity AN B PR ER e R
holders of the Company 1,938,045 2,366,002 3,032,331 3,246,105 3,484,054
Minority interest DR - - - (62) (62)

1,938,045 2,366,002 3,032,331 3,246,043 3,483,992
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